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          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Good afternoon,

          3  ladies and gents.  My name is Robert Jackson.  I

          4  Chair the Education Committee, and today's Hearing

          5  is in response to an investigative series by the New

          6  York Daily News, which reported a history of serious

          7  complaints regarding misconduct and abuse and

          8  failure to investigate such complaints on New York

          9  City school buses.

         10                 Before I begin, let me just introduce

         11  my colleagues that are present this afternoon.  From

         12  my right to my left are Council Member Lew Fidler of

         13  Brooklyn, Council Member Al Vann of Brooklyn,

         14  Council Member Oliver Koppell of the Bronx, Council

         15  Member Jimmy Vacca of the Bronx.  To my left,

         16  Council Member John Liu of Queens and Council Member

         17  Peter Vallone, Jr. of Queens, Council Member Maria

         18  del Carmen Arroyo of the Bronx, and in front of us,

         19  Council Member Vincent Ignizio of Staten Island, our

         20  newest member of the City Council, our newest member

         21  of the Education Committee.

         22                 After reading the news articles, you

         23  cannot help but be filled with emotion.  It is

         24  absolutely unacceptable that a child should have to

         25  endure any type of abuse on their way to school or
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          2  from school, let alone the level of abuse that was

          3  reported in the Daily News articles.  It is equally

          4  unacceptable to learn that the procedures in place

          5  to investigate complaints of abuse and misconduct

          6  were so poor, and in many cases allowed for repeated

          7  incidents of abuse.

          8                 Obviously, this is a highly emotional

          9  issue, and I know this is difficult, but I'm going

         10  to ask my colleagues to try to focus on procedure,

         11  on strategy, on what we can change and have the

         12  Department of Education change in order to make it

         13  work.  We cannot go back and erase the horrific

         14  incidents that took place, but we can work to ensure

         15  that in the future when a child gets on a school bus

         16  that he or she is safe.

         17                 Today, the Education Committee will

         18  explore the hiring and training qualifications of

         19  school bus drivers and escorts, as well as the

         20  Department of Education's Office of Pupil

         21  Transportation procedures for investigating

         22  complaints of abuse and misconduct involving staff

         23  or students.

         24                 I understand that the Department of

         25  Education is conducting an examination of its
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          2  policies and procedures and has developed a plan

          3  with several strategies, including tracking the

          4  severity of complaints, performing periodic audits

          5  to see if complaints are handled correctly, and

          6  hiring additional investigators.

          7                 This is a great step in the right

          8  direction, but, quite frankly, it should have been

          9  in place a long, long time ago. But we need to make

         10  sure that every angle is covered.  We need to

         11  identify the gaps in the investigative process and

         12  explore policies that will help to ensure that New

         13  York City school busses are as safe as possible, and

         14  that our school bus staff are of the highest

         15  quality.

         16                 My colleagues, Council Member Jimmy

         17  Vacca of the Bronx, has introduced legislation that

         18  would require security cameras and monitors on all

         19  New York City school buses, and we will hear opening

         20  remarks from him in one minute.

         21                 Also, I need to mention that the

         22  Committee will be voting on proposed Intro No. 83A,

         23  a Local Law that would extend New York City's

         24  whistleblower protection to public employees who

         25  make a report of information concerning conduct that
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          2  presents a substantial and specific risk of harm to

          3  the health, safety or educational welfare of a

          4  child.  In the bill, educational welfare is defined

          5  to mean any aspect of a child's education or

          6  educational environment that significantly impacts

          7  upon the child's ability to receive appropriate

          8  instruction as mandated by any relevant law, rule,

          9  regulation or sound educational practice.

         10                 Let me turn to my colleague, Jimmy

         11  Vacca, for an opening statement concerning the bill

         12  in which he introduced, which is Intro No. 554.

         13  Council Member Jimmy Vacca of the Bronx.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chairman.  The New York Daily News articles really

         16  have resulted in a rude awakening here in our City,

         17  a rude awakening when it comes to incidents that

         18  have occurred on our school buses.  My legislation

         19  proposes that we require cameras in all school

         20  busses and that we require monitors on our school

         21  buses to protect our children, to protect our

         22  grandchildren in future years and to be proactive.

         23  Too often in the history of this City something

         24  happens of a serious nature, which then leads to

         25  action.  Well, I think that the documentation we
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          2  have now shows that real, serious incidents have

          3  happened, and if we do not face, we face the

          4  prospect of even more serious incidents taking

          5  place.

          6                 My concern is that the measures you

          7  see today from DOE may be administrative.  They may

          8  be procedural, and they may have taken steps, but to

          9  address it procedurally, or to address it

         10  administratively, or to take the steps that are

         11  indicated, is not enough.  What will be enough is

         12  when we say once and for all, our kids matter.

         13  Someone said to me today, what will the cost be?  My

         14  reaction is, well, whatever the cost is, it's going

         15  to be several million dollars, it may be more.  We

         16  talk about cost.  We talk about on this panel

         17  reading and math scores.  Well, we cannot address

         18  reading and math scores in a vacuum when we're

         19  talking about public safety and when we're talking

         20  about the expectation that every parent should have

         21  in this City that when they put their child on a

         22  school bus, their child is safe from an attack from

         23  an employee, from other students, that that kid is

         24  safe to and from school in every respect, and that

         25  if there is an incident, there will be someone held
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          2  accountable beyond doubt, where there will be

          3  documentation to show who did something they should

          4  not have done.

          5                 You know, I admit to you that this

          6  legislation I've submitted is not an act of science

          7  on my part.  I'm not a genius. I don't think it

          8  takes much brains to come up with my idea.  I think

          9  it takes common sense, and I think that parents know

         10  all too often who got on a fight in the school bus,

         11  how many times they hear from children the bus was

         12  going too fast.  How many times people on the street

         13  will say something was thrown from a bus, but they

         14  didn't know who threw it?

         15                 We have an opportunity in this

         16  Council to act.  I hope that the Department of

         17  Education supports our recommendation. If we do not

         18  act, we will be asking ourselves a year from now and

         19  two years from now what happened?  Why didn't we

         20  act?  If we let this go further, and if we're not

         21  proactive, then we do not have the will because

         22  certainly we have the capacity, and certainly we

         23  have the knowledge, and we have the information.

         24                 So I'm hoping now that through this

         25  legislation we can once and for all say that our
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          2  City will have zero tolerance for future school

          3  violence.  Our City is committed to protecting our

          4  kids once and for all.  It will no longer be he

          5  said, she said. It will be this happened, this did

          6  not happen.  We are ready to proceed.  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, thank

          8  you, Council Member.  And before we move on Intro

          9  No. 83-A, let me just acknowledge that my

         10  colleagues, David Yassky of Brooklyn has joined us,

         11  along with my colleague Melinda Katz of Queens.

         12                 Right now I would like to move on

         13  Intro No. 83-A, which is a Local Law to amend

         14  Administrative Code of the City of New York in

         15  relation to the protection of public employees

         16  whistleblowers.  This proposed Intro No. 83 was

         17  sponsored by Council Member Eric Gioia, Vincent

         18  Gentile, Miguel Martinez, David Weprin, Maria del

         19  Carmen Arroyo, Melinda Katz, Letitia James, Sara

         20  Gonzalez, Alan Gerson and Helen Sears.

         21                 Is Council Member Gioia here?  Then,

         22  what I'm going to do is I'm going to ask the Clerk

         23  to call the roll.  The Chair recommends an aye vote

         24  on this particular matter.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Jackson.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Aye.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  DeBlasio.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

          8                 Foster.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Was that

         10  first one Felder or Fidler?

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Felder, then Fidler.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Oh, I mean to

         13  answer for Fidler, not Felder.  We look alike, but

         14   --

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Fidler.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Aye.

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Foster.

         18                 (No response.)

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Katz.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER KATZ:  Aye.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.
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          2                 (No response.)

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Recchia.

          4                 (No response.)

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vallone.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  No.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vann.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VANN:  No.

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Yassky.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Aye.

         11                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Arroyo.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO:  Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Garodnick.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:

         15                 (No response.)

         16                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Lappin.

         17                 (No response.)

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Vacca.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Ignizio.

         21                 (No response.)

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The vote stands at 11

         23  in the positive, affirmative, no negative, no

         24  abstentions.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.
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          2  We'll keep the vote open.  We'll keep the vote open,

          3  and let me just congratulate you in the first time

          4  calling the roll.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE: I said no.

          6  There's no negatives? I said no. I'm a negative.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: Clerk, could you

          8  restate the total numbers, please?

          9                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Ten in the

         10  affirmative, one negative, zero abstentions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, let me

         12  just thank you, Eric --

         13                 COUNCIL CLERK: Sign the reports,

         14  please.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON: I want to thank

         16  you for calling your first call on a vote, and I

         17  know that you have to get used to the names, but I'm

         18  sure that that will happen as simple as one, two,

         19  three.  So, let me just thank you for being a part

         20  of our City Council staff in order to help move

         21  forward this particular legislation.

         22                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next we're

         24  going to hear from our first witnesses.  There's

         25  Kathleen Grimm, the Deputy Chancellor for Finance
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          2  and Administration for the Department of Education,

          3  and Eric Goldstein, the Chief Executive of School

          4  Support Services at the Department of Education.

          5  Good afternoon and welcome.  Sorry for getting

          6  started a little late.  We appreciate you coming

          7  forward, and we look forward to hearing your

          8  testimony.

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Thank you

         10  very much.  We are here today to discuss safety on

         11  our school buses.  The vast majority of our children

         12  are safe on New York City school buses. However, we

         13  all agree that one incident is one too many, and we

         14  need to address what we are going to do in the

         15  Department in terms of our procedures.

         16                 As way of background, the Department

         17  oversees roughly 50 million student trips each year.

         18    We have more than 7,500 routes, nearly 8,500

         19  drivers and over 6,500 escorts.  This is the largest

         20  transportation operation for students in the

         21  country, and we always look for ways to improve what

         22  we do.

         23                 In light of the recent reports about

         24  safety on our school buses, the Chancellor asked

         25  that we go back and take a closer look at our
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          2  operations.  And, in fact, in some cases going

          3  through on a case by case basis, we have learned a

          4  great deal and have decided to make a series of

          5  changes as part of a strategic plan to improve some

          6  of our processes at the Office of Pupil

          7  Transportation, or OPT.  I would like to outline

          8  some of those changes for you today.

          9                 Calls to the OPT hotline have

         10  increased significantly.  In fact, we already have

         11  approximately 100,000 more calls into our customer

         12  service unit so far this year than we had last year.

         13    If you refer to the information we provided the

         14  Committee, you will see the number of cases created

         15  by the Investigations Unit has gone up each year in

         16  the last three years as well.

         17                 The Investigations Unit of OPT was

         18  initially created as a contract compliance team

         19  monitoring the behavior of bus companies and their

         20  employees pursuant to the terms of the contracts we

         21  have with them.  This means that OPT investigators

         22  primarily investigated allegations of bus driver and

         23  escort misbehavior, the crews on the buses.  Cases

         24  involving student misconduct were referred to the

         25  schools of the students involved for the school
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          2  leadership to investigate.  If the driver or escort

          3  contributed to the student misconduct, for example,

          4  escort negligence in preventing a student- on-

          5  student incident, then OPT would investigate.

          6                 Last year we saw spike in the driver

          7  escort misconduct cases, as well as student

          8  misconduct cases.  Of the over 2,400 driver escort

          9  misconduct cases last year, we've determined that

         10  269 were substantiated and 1,257 were not.  So while

         11  the actual number of calls in cases has increased,

         12  we are seeing that the percentage of cases has

         13  remained fairly steady in the driver escort and in

         14  the student misconduct categories.

         15                 Even though the percentage has been

         16  consistent, we wanted to do a case by case analysis

         17  because the increasing numbers do concern us.

         18  Again, referring to the information that we provided

         19  the Committee, you will see that the number of cases

         20  created has gone up, and when we saw the spike in

         21  driver escort misconduct cases, we decided to

         22  examine whether the classification was correct, and

         23  we were driven to do this because our original

         24  numbers indicated that the number of substantiated

         25  cases had actually decreased, and that didn't make
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          2  any sense to us.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Deputy

          4  Chancellor, I'm just trying to follow your

          5  testimony, which we have in front of us.  Can you

          6  give us a point of reference where you are at this

          7  point?

          8                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I'm on page

          9  two, and I am adding some additional facts.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         11  you.  I appreciate it.

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We were

         13  concerned because the initial data indicated that

         14  the number of substantiated cases had decreased, and

         15  when we saw that all of the calls had increased and

         16  the number of cases had increased, that just didn't

         17  seem right. It was possible it was right, but we

         18  wanted to do a case by case drill- down in that.

         19  What we found was, indeed, the number of

         20  substantiated cases had increased.  There was, if

         21  you followed the reports in the papers,

         22  disagreement.  We had to work at getting that data

         23  straight.

         24                 So what we found was that some

         25  unsubstantiated cases had been misclassified.  They
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          2  should have been classified in the substantiated

          3  bucket.

          4                 We also found as we did this drill-

          5  down, and we literally went through every single

          6  unsubstantiated case, over 1,600 of them, that there

          7  were some cases that actually warranted additional

          8  investigation.  We then looked at another category

          9  called Referred to Vendor, a category that meant

         10  that the investigators had essentially taken no

         11  action other than to advise the bus company.  Now I

         12  will say that these were basically minor

         13  infractions.  Minor does not mean acceptable, but

         14  they were not serious allegations of misconduct.

         15  Those had all been investigated.

         16                 Under our new guidelines, we're going

         17  to consider these cases as cases that will be

         18  investigated, so we have this category that will not

         19  exist hereafter that is on the data that we've given

         20  you, and that is incomplete investigations, and

         21  that's where we categorized all of those cases on

         22  the case- by- case basis that we thought should have

         23  in the past received more investigation.

         24                 What is all of this telling us, and

         25  what are we going to do about it?  We basically
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          2  figured out that there were two problems.  Number

          3  one, the investigator's caseload had grown over the

          4  last five years.  Even though we had hired

          5  additional investigators, the per investigator

          6  caseload had grown dramatically.  In response to

          7  that, we are hiring more investigators.  Indeed,

          8  we're going to add four more investigators to our

          9  current seven.  We also found that the unit was

         10  poorly managed, so we have replaced the management

         11  of that unit, or are in the process of replacing it.

         12    And we are re- defining the role of the OPT

         13  Investigations Unit beyond just contract compliance

         14  with the bus companies.

         15                 As I say, we are hiring a new

         16  investigations manager, who will be responsible for

         17  ensuring that the OPT investigators look into all

         18  cases in a timely manner and that each case is fully

         19  investigated.

         20                 In addition, OPT will now work with

         21  the Office of School Intervention and Development,

         22  which is the office in the Department that monitors

         23  and addresses student misconduct and safety in our

         24  schools.  Together, these two units will oversee the

         25  process for referring student misconduct to the
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          2  school and following up to make sure appropriate

          3  action is taken at the school level.

          4                 We are also developing ways to

          5  further streamline and formalize referral and

          6  appropriate follow through for student misconduct

          7  that happens on a school bus.

          8                 In addition, the Office of the

          9  Auditor General in the Department will regularly

         10  review the timing and thoroughness of randomly

         11  selected investigation cases.

         12                 Our examination also showed that

         13  different bus companies use different forms to

         14  report incidents, which would capture different

         15  information.  Clearly, with such a large operation,

         16  there is need for a cohesiveness, so we are working

         17  with the bus companies to standardize all reporting.

         18    We will develop with them a standardized student

         19  misbehavior report, which will be used by all

         20  company employees to report student misconduct to

         21  OPT. These reports will then go to the schools for

         22  investigation, and we will also bring OSID into the

         23  loop.  That unit is actually working with OPT to

         24  help design this new form.  We'll have control

         25  numbers, so that the whole process can be
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          2  synchronized throughout the agency.

          3                 We believe that standardized

          4  reporting mechanisms will be tremendously helpful as

          5  a tool for us in managing the data, addressing the

          6  incidents and resolving issues much more quickly.

          7                 We are also working with the bus

          8  company to enforce standards for disciplining

          9  drivers and escorts.  We're meeting with the

         10  companies and the unions to enforce the regularity

         11  and to formalize the process around investigator

         12  interviews with union members and the OPT

         13  disciplinary panel hearings.  We are enhancing our

         14  data and reporting systems.  The current systems

         15  were developed strictly to monitor contract

         16  compliance.  The systems will expand so that we'll

         17  be able to sort investigations by outcome, for

         18  example, substantiated or substantiated, and

         19  immediately identify punishments for each

         20  substantiated case.

         21                 We do conduct background checks on

         22  bus drivers and escorts that are actually more

         23  thorough than the mandated checks by New York State

         24  law.  In addition, we have more rigorous training

         25  for escorts than mandated by state law.  For

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  example, the state requires 20 hours of training.

          3  We require 30.  We also do Red Cross training and

          4  CPR training, whereas the state only mandates CPR.

          5  Indeed, DOE requires that all bus drivers attend

          6  training for working with special needs students, as

          7  opposed to state law, which requires this training

          8  only for drivers who will work directly with those

          9  students.  We also make special ed. Drivers and

         10  escorts available for not less than two days of

         11  specialized training in the schools that they serve.

         12

         13                 We treat all allegations of

         14  misbehavior very seriously.  Bus drivers and matrons

         15  who have serious allegations made against them are

         16  immediately suspended from service pending the

         17  outcome of the investigation.  We plan to enhance

         18  staff development training to address staff conduct.

         19                 All in all, we acknowledge that

         20  misconduct on buses is an area that we need to

         21  address.  We will better manage this through greater

         22  oversight of the Investigations Unit, improving our

         23  recordkeeping, clearly defining and reforming our

         24  processes, collaborating with OSID, providing

         25  greater staff development and periodic reviews by
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          2  our Auditor General.  One incident on our buses is

          3  one too many.  I thank you very much for the

          4  opportunity to testify here today and will be happy

          5  to respond to your questions in this area.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

          7  We've been joined by Council Member Eric Gioia, who

          8  is a prime sponsor of Intro 83-A, which we voted on.

          9    Eric, did you have anything to say about Intro

         10  83A?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chairman, and sorry I missed the vote.  I was across

         13  the hall in another hearing. I just want to thank

         14  the Committee for its support of this measure and

         15  look forward to talking more about it at the Council

         16  Hearing tomorrow.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         18  Recently you announced, I guess a plan to address

         19  the safety issues and concerns and basically looking

         20  at overhauling basically a whole review of OPT and

         21  the way business is being done.  As you indicated, I

         22  think you replaced, from what I am understanding

         23  your statement, you replaced the management people,

         24  or the chief investigator.  What was that title of

         25  that individual?
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          2                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That person

          3  was the Director of the Investigations Unit.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And you

          5  indicated that that individual, or the heads of that

          6  unit, have been replaced based on what you feel was,

          7  I guess the appropriateness because things were not

          8  being done to the satisfaction of the Department of

          9  Education?

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's

         11  absolutely correct. We learned, as we were working

         12  with the FOIL requests, that the data management of

         13  the unit was almost completely lacking because we

         14  couldn't cohesively produce the data that we wanted

         15  to produce in the FOIL requests.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So one

         17  component of that plan is to treat student

         18  misconduct incidents on school buses as if they

         19  happen in schools, is that correct?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Exactly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That was not

         22  happening before?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  What was

         24  happening before was the mindset was a little

         25  different.  The unit was originally set up as a
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          2  contract compliance unit, and what we realize is

          3  that we have to change the lens on that.  We have to

          4  say, a child gets on the bus, it's just like the

          5  child walking into a school building.  Our child,

          6  our responsibility, and while we were following up

          7  on all of the allegations about the behavior of the

          8  driver or the escort, and we were referring cases of

          9  student of misbehavior to the school, as an agency,

         10  we weren't cohesive enough about involving OSID,

         11  which, after all, the unit that's charged with

         12  monitoring our disciplinary code and those kinds of

         13  cases in our schools, so they need to have a role

         14  vis- a- vis our children in the buses and to

         15  coordinate better with the schools.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  As a layperson,

         17  not knowing the technical language of the contracts

         18  between the bus companies and DOE and the DOE

         19  policies and procedures, I just assume that any

         20  incidents on the bus would be considered as being

         21  happening on the school grounds.  Was that not in

         22  place before, and if it's in place now, when did

         23  that take place?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  As we went

         25  through this process, I think it was, as I say, more
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          2  of a mindset.  The original concept behind this unit

          3  was contract compliance.  We have an obligation, I

          4  think, to have a much broader view of what we're

          5  doing in this unit.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So was a memo

          7  or a Chancellor's Regulations issued or amended to

          8  communicate with clarity either to the school

          9  leaderships, all of the principals of the

         10  approximately 1,500 schools and/or to the bus

         11  companies clarifying what the situation is?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  No.  We're

         13  certainly not at the point of doing that.  We will.

         14  We're talking to legal about exactly what the

         15  Chancellor's Reg. Should say.  We have certainly

         16  brought in the bus companies, as well as the unions,

         17  to discuss what our approach is going to be going

         18  forward, and I will say we have gotten terrific

         19  cooperation there.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So you're

         21  saying that that is going to happen, and it's going

         22  to happen soon, is that correct?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It is

         24  happening as we speak.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, but no

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  regulations or formal memos have been issued, is

          3  that correct?

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Not yet.

          5  This is correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, very

          7  good.  What about Chancellor's Regulations A801?  I

          8  think it talks about bus drivers and escorts are

          9  instructed to inform teachers and principals about

         10  student misbehavior.  If the problem is not

         11  resolved, then the regulations state that the bus

         12  workers are instructed to contact the Office of

         13  Pupil Transportation.  What is the difference in

         14  what you're envisioning, or you're saying that's

         15  happening now, than what the regulations A801 now

         16  states?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  All bus

         18  drivers and escorts are required to report every

         19  single incident, and if we find out an incident

         20  takes place, and they haven't reported it, there is

         21  a sanction for that.  So as far as that particular

         22  piece, there's not much difference.  I think what we

         23  want to do is sort of change the mindset of the

         24  entire OPT staff in terms of how we follow up on all

         25  of those reports and how we classify them and
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          2  monitor what we're doing.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now when you

          4  talk about OPT, the Office of Pupil Transportation,

          5  what does that office consist of?  I would assume it

          6  has either a director or assistant director. How

          7  much staff do they have as far as you indicated, and

          8  reports indicated, they have seven investigators,

          9  and you're in the process of hiring what the

         10  Department of Education feels are four more

         11  investigators.  I assume you feel that that number

         12  is sufficient in order to address the issues and

         13  concerns, but what makes up the Office of Pupil

         14  Transportation besides the seven investigators?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Eric, do

         16  you want to respond to that specifically?

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have general

         18  management of Office of Pupil Transportation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Can you just

         20  push the mic up so it can be a little louder?  Thank

         21  you.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Sorry, Council

         23  Member.  We have the general management of Pupil

         24  Transportation with an Executive Director.  We have

         25  the Investigations Unit with seven investigators and
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          2  four support staff.  We have a contract compliance

          3  unit, which deals with contract matters as well.  We

          4  have a customer service unit, which answers the OPT

          5  hotline phone numbers.  We have the general

          6  education routing unit.  We have the special

          7  education routing unit.  We have a Metro card unit.

          8  We have an IT component, and we have an inspection

          9  unit, which does bus inspections, not

         10  investigations.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now, you said

         12  that there's a unit, there's a hotline unit?

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is that where

         15  all of the people would call in about complaints or

         16  to report anything, is that correct?

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Where is that

         19  physically located at, and how many staff are in

         20  that particular unit?

         21                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  It's on Vernon

         22  Boulevard in Long Island City.  In terms of the

         23  exact staff, we have about 40 usually.  At peak

         24  times during September we get up to 90.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So those are
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          2  full- time or part- time positions?

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  The 40 that are

          4  there, so we staff according to the call volume, so

          5  for instance, in September we get a lot more calls

          6  than we do in, say November or usually in March or

          7  something like that.  So usually 40 is the base, and

          8  we staff up as volume increases.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So in looking

         10  at the entire, I guess, if I was in your shoes, I

         11  would be looking at everything, OPT, and all of the

         12  various units there.  I guess you feel that hiring

         13  four new investigators and -- are you hiring a new

         14  director?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes, of the

         16  Investigations Unit.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And what about

         18  OPT?  Because obviously, you know what people say.

         19  The buck stops with whoever the boss is, and the

         20  director of OPT and then you're the director of the

         21  office school support services, which includes the

         22  Office of Pupil Transportation.  Do you feel that

         23  there's a need, and I don't know if there is, I'm

         24  just asking a question.  Do you feel there's a need

         25  to change the head of the Office of Pupil
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          2  Transportation?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  No, I do

          4  not.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Who is that

          6  current head right now?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Richie

          8  Scarpa (phonetic).

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I assume that

         10  your organizational chart of the Office of Pupil

         11  Transportation is online?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I don't

         13  believe the chart is online, but we can certainly

         14  get you a copy.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, I would

         16  like to, because it would obviously include all of

         17  the various units that you make reference to.  Do

         18  you have a manual or anything else in writing that

         19  outlines the policies and procedures that

         20  investigators in the Office of Pupil Transportation

         21  are supposed to follow when they are investigating

         22  complaints concerning conduct by students and/or

         23  drivers and/or escorts on school buses?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Basically,

         25  no.  There are some for the drivers, but as part of
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          2  our review, we are looking at them, and we plan to

          3  update them as well as to create some for the

          4  investigators.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That's quite

          6  shocking to me that considering that the Office of

          7  Pupil Transportation for years have been receiving

          8  complaints that there's no investigations policy and

          9  procedures manual, and as someone that was former

         10  investigator investigating fraud, I'm shocked that

         11  there's none. In fact, I don't even know what to say

         12  that there's none.  So what type of policies or

         13  procedures were investigators working on?  I mean,

         14  was there any standardized approach to

         15  investigations?  Or did investigators use whatever

         16  knowledge and skills and training that they had to

         17  investigate allegations of abuse or misconduct or

         18  things like that?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Eric?

         20                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, just a word

         21  about the background of our investigators because I

         22  think that's pertinent. We have at the moment seven

         23  investigators.  Six are former NYPD detectives.  One

         24  is a former ACS case worker.  So they come from a

         25  background where they know investigations and how to

                                                            33

          1  COMMITTEE ON EDUCATION

          2  investigate.

          3                 In terms of the procedures within

          4  OPT, a phone call will come into the hotline.  It

          5  could generate a complaint.  That complaint can

          6  generate investigation.  It goes into our

          7  investigatory computer system.  The investigators

          8  then assess that complaint and categorize it and

          9  assign it to an investigator.  That investigator

         10  does their investigation, and then they should

         11  finish that investigation and then substantiate it

         12  ultimately, or unsubstantiate it and move on.  So

         13  that's the process, in the sense.

         14                 Again, the investigators we have are

         15  seasoned, experienced investigators.  These aren't

         16  people with no investigatory background.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That

         18  doesn't mean that we shouldn't have written policies

         19  and procedures.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I truly

         21  understand, and I was going to get into what are the

         22  minimum qualifications, and yet I think you said six

         23  out of seven of them are former NYPD either police

         24  officers or detectives or investigators, and one is

         25  a former ACS, which would clearly indicate on the
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          2  face of it that they have the experience.

          3  Obviously, it would appear that way.

          4                 But are there standardized forms that

          5  were used to write up complaints, to how did a

          6  complaint come into determined to be an

          7  investigation?  Or did each one determine that on

          8  their own? Or was that decision made by the

          9  investigator?  Or was it made in terms of the Chief

         10  Investigator or the Director of the Investigations

         11  Unit?  Who made the determination if, in fact, a

         12  complaint should be opened up into an investigation?

         13    And what type of investigation was it?  Was it

         14  verbal abuse?  Was it physical abuse?  Was it sexual

         15  abuse?  You know what I mean.  There are many

         16  categories and severities and not only severity but

         17  how soon a case should be investigated.  A verbal

         18  abuse case is different from a sexual abuse case as

         19  far as when it needs to be investigated, depending

         20  on how many cases you have pending, and so forth and

         21  so on.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

         23  Eric, can you walk us through the process?

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Right.  Again, a call

         25  would come into the OPT hotline.  A parent can call
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          2  the OPT hotline, a school, a bus company, for

          3  instance, to report an incident.  That is then

          4  characterized by the operator who takes the call.

          5  It's sort of like a 911 call, if you will.  So they

          6  can categorize it.  The category could be an

          7  allegation of a sexual nature.  It could be a fight

          8  or something like that.  That then moves over to the

          9  investigator's computer system, and they get that

         10  case.  An investigator opens the case.  The chief

         11  investigator assigns it to an investigator who has

         12  that case, and they investigate.  They clearly

         13  triage, so allegations that are very serious like

         14  sexual or violence, certainly by the crew on a

         15  student, as Deputy Chancellor mentioned, they will

         16  take a look at.

         17                 The other ones are verbal abuse.

         18  They will take a look as well, but clearly, they

         19  tend to focus more on the more serious allegations.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now, you say

         21  when the operators take the complaints, they

         22  categorize it based on the information that they

         23  receive from the people that are calling in the

         24  complaints, and then they refer that to the

         25  Investigations Unit at OPD.  I assume that's by
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          2  computer, is that correct?

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Not 1930, where

          5  they write a piece of paper and fax it to the

          6  office?

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No, sir, by computer.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  I just

          9  want to know because it's important to know because

         10  based on the reports that were reported in the Daily

         11  News as far as the number of substantiated cases in

         12  2006, there were three different answers, and, quite

         13  frankly, I was saying, how come they can't get it

         14  right the first time in 2007 with the computers can

         15  add it up?  You don't even have to add it up

         16  manually these days.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's just

         18  the question the Chancellor asked us too.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is there a form

         20  or some other document that the operators make

         21  reference to in order to classify the severity of

         22  the cases and/or what training and/or experience do

         23  operators have, the approximately 40, and as

         24  necessary more than that to meet the peak demand in

         25  order for them to make the judgment call as to what
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          2  category?  Let's say, I believe you indicated there

          3  are nine categories, or there may be more than nine?

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  More than nine.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What experience

          6  and/or training that they have to determine whether

          7  or not something should be in a certain category?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's a good

          9  question, and that's something we're also working

         10  on, to enhance our training and staff development in

         11  this very area.  Sometimes an investigator will get

         12  a case and we'll need to see if it was properly

         13  categorized.  The calls that come into OPT don't all

         14  turn into cases.  They could be, what's my route

         15  number?  Or something informational.  So, yes,

         16  that's a very good point, and that's something that

         17  we're certainly going to take a look at and

         18  certainly work on training and staff development in

         19  that very area.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  If I can

         21  just add.

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Sure, go ahead.

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  There are

         24  drop down categories, so there's a framework.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  In the
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          2  computer?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes,

          4  there's a framework for the operator to work within,

          5  but that doesn't mean that we shouldn't be examining

          6  the level of training and preparation we give them.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, I can

          8  understand the drop downs being on the computer, but

          9  there must be certain criteria in order for an

         10  operator to determine whether or not something

         11  should be in category, let's three versus category

         12  eight, let's say eight being the more severe, and

         13  nine being sexual abuse and physical abuse, stuff

         14  like that.  I don't know whether or not one is, or

         15  nine is, but there must be certain criteria

         16  regarding that, and I'm curious as to one, the

         17  criteria in determining what categories should go

         18  into, and number two, the type of training that

         19  these operators have in order to make those

         20  determinations and then refer it to the

         21  investigative unit.  I would love to see that

         22  information, so if you could provide that to us,

         23  we'd appreciate it very much.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM: We'd be

         25  happy to.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now you walked

          3  through a typical process, Mr. Goldstein, what

          4  happens when a case is called into the hotline, and

          5  it is referred to the investigative unit. Can you

          6  walk me through a typical investigation in detail?

          7  When an investigator gets a case, what happens?  Who

          8  is contacted?  How many attempts are made to contact

          9  relevant people, like parents? And what type of

         10  questions are asked?  The reason why I ask this, so

         11  you know, there was one report reported in the Daily

         12  News where an investigator called the parent, and

         13  the parent spoke Spanish. The investigator spoke

         14  English, and there was no further contact with that

         15  parent thereafter.  So can you walk me through a

         16  typical investigation?  And, number two, of the

         17  seven investigators, how many of them speak a

         18  language other than English?  And what languages, if

         19  any, do they speak?

         20                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  On a typical

         21  investigation, the investigator first would assess

         22  the case and determine how to proceed.  And also

         23  looking at who the complainant was.  They would talk

         24  certainly to the crew and interview the crew and see

         25  what was going on on a typical case.  They might
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          2  also talk to the principal of the school or the

          3  teacher who receives the children.  Depending on the

          4  nature of the case, they might also make an attempt

          5  and get through and talk to the parent as well.  So

          6  they try to do, depending on the nature of a case, a

          7  thorough investigation.  We have two investigators

          8  who speak Spanish.  I am not aware of any that speak

          9  other languages.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  If I could

         11  just add, we do have written requirements for a

         12  thorough investigation, and we would be happy to

         13  share that with you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You have

         15  requirements for a thorough investigation?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Written

         17  requirements for a thorough investigation, all of

         18  the steps that have to be taken.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  By

         20  investigators?

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  I would

         23  love to see that.  I'm sure that you read the

         24  reports, just like I did.  What did you find in the

         25  report that indicated that the parent who spoke
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          2  Spanish was never contacted again?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I don't

          4  remember that one.

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That clearly is a

          6  shortcoming.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  And it's

          8  not acceptable, clearly not acceptable.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I know it's not

         10  acceptable.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I just

         12  don't remember that one.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You don't

         14  remember?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  No.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, it's in

         17  the papers that I've read before, and I re- read

         18  again.  It's listed in here.  I would think that

         19  since those were the ones that were highlighted,

         20  those are the most egregious ones, and you would

         21  have looked into that.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I'm sure we

         23  did.  I just don't recall it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is it normal,

         25  you said sometimes we may contact the parent.  I
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          2  would assume that the students, or whoever filed the

          3  complaint, it may be the first individual that you

          4  would contact.

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's right.  It

          6  depends who the complainant is, if it's the parent

          7  or the school.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What's your

          9  protocol for interviewing students?

         10                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  It always takes place

         11  at the school. We work through the school principal.

         12    The principal gets the necessary permissions from

         13  the parents, and that's where the investigators talk

         14  to students.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So you're

         16  saying that part of the protocol is that the

         17  principal gets permission from the parents?  Is the

         18  parent involved in that interview?  Is it required

         19  that parents be there, or that permission from the

         20  parents be obtained before you speak to a student?

         21  What is the policy and procedure of your unit?

         22                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  The permission is

         23  obtained, usually through the school through the

         24  principal.  I don't believe it's a requirement that

         25  the parent has to be there, but the school has to
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          2  give permission for our investigators to be there.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So the school

          4  would have to give you permission?

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.  We work through

          6  the school and the principal.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And so a child

          8  is 8 years old or 6 years old, or 12, it doesn't

          9  matter the age?  A child under age, a parent does

         10  not have to be informed for an investigator is

         11  investigating a complaint, whether it's criminal in

         12  nature and/or an administrative, like a verbal abuse

         13  situation?

         14                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No.  The parent is

         15  informed through the school, so we work through the

         16  principal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Is there

         18  a special set of procedures, or is there a special

         19  policy and procedures if the underlying complaint

         20  involves sexual misconduct by either students or

         21  school bus workers?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We act

         23  immediately.  The member of the crew involved is

         24  suspended pending the outcome of the investigation.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is there a
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          2  protocol in writing on how you handle alleged sex

          3  abuse cases, Mr. Goldstein?

          4                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have for

          5  departments for a thorough investigation.  Usually,

          6  in a sexual abuse allegation, if it's a crew member,

          7  we suspend immediately, as the Deputy Chancellor

          8  said.  There might also, in addition to our

          9  investigation, there might be local law enforcement

         10  involved, in which case obviously they would take

         11  the lead on the investigation. If a case has

         12  criminality, as a case of that nature you described

         13  would, we also forward the case immediately to the

         14  Special Commissioner for investigation as well.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Deputy

         16  Chancellor, my understanding is that any allegations

         17  of sexual abuse are supposed to be reported

         18  immediately to the New York Police Department, is

         19  that correct?  Am I right, or am I wrong?

         20  Allegations of sexual abuse.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  To the

         22  Police Department?

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, and they always

         24  are.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I am
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          2  informed they are reported to the Police Department.

          3  They, as well, are reported to Commissioner Condon.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And that report

          5  is supposed to occur immediately by whatever

          6  official of the Department of Education receives the

          7  complaint, isn't that correct?  So if I'm a teacher,

          8  let's walk me through.  If I'm a teacher, and a

          9  student reported to me that they were sexually

         10  abused by another student on the bus and/or an

         11  employee or staff member on the bus, I'm a teacher

         12  and I'm supposed to take that immediately to the

         13  principal or assistant principal, who is supposed to

         14  call NYPD, is that correct?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That sounds

         16  correct to me, but I would like to verify that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Is it possible

         18  that before this hearing is over, somebody can check

         19  on that for me?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, thank

         22  you.  What happens in a situation with student to

         23  student allegations?  What is the protocol as far as

         24  that is concerned?  As far as within the school, or

         25  as reported by a bus escort to the school
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          2  administration?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes, and I

          4  think that goes to the heart of what I tried to make

          5  my message to be here today. Those are all referred

          6  to the school, which I think is the appropriate

          7  thing.  We certainly haven't created or staffed this

          8  unit to investigate situations that have to do with

          9  student misconduct, whereas we have protocols in

         10  place for schools to respond and to do those

         11  investigations.  I think what we want to do as an

         12  agency is just make sure we've looped all the

         13  appropriate offices together so we have some

         14  coherence in how we, the Department, are addressing

         15  all of these situations.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Does the Office

         17  of Pupil Transportation keep the number of incidents

         18  reported to the schools on allegations of abuse,

         19  sexual abuse, anything like that, so that there is a

         20  follow up somewhere between pupil transportation and

         21  school administration?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's what

         23  we're trying to achieve.  This office did not have a

         24  mindset of following through on all of these

         25  situations, and, in fairness, it was created to be a
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          2  contract compliance unit focused on situations

          3  involving either the driver or the escort, so I

          4  think what we as a Department now want to do is to

          5  make sure that we have all of the appropriate

          6  offices in the Department of Education coordinated

          7  on these efforts.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What are the

          9  minimum requirements for your investigators?

         10                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  The base minimum

         11  requirement is that a case is referred to them --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  No, no, no.

         13  Qualifications. What are the minimum requirements to

         14  be an investigator in the Office of Pupil

         15  Transportation?

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Generally speaking,

         17  we look for a background as an investigator.  That's

         18  why we prefer people who are coming to us either

         19  from NYPD or other law enforcement agencies or other

         20  agencies that have a strong proven investigative

         21  arm.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Have you

         23  already put out an announcement for the four new

         24  investigators that you're planning to hire?

         25                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You have.

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have some people

          4  that we have interviewed.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Have you put

          6  out a formal announcement, and I want to see the

          7  announcement.  Have you put out a formal

          8  announcement?

          9                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have a job

         10  posting, and I can get that to you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You do?

         12                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Can you please

         14  forward us the current job announcement for the new

         15  investigators that you plan to hire?  And is that

         16  any different than the previous announcements that

         17  you had put out in which you hired the seven

         18  investigators? I know some of them may have been on

         19  board for years, but has that job announcement

         20  changed any?

         21                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No, it has not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  If you could

         23  forward us a copy of that, I would like to look at

         24  it, if you don't mind.

         25                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I know that

          3  there used to be investigator and then investigator

          4  Spanish speaking.  Are you looking to hire more

          5  Spanish speaking investigators that actually speak

          6  Spanish, both languages, you know, which is a

          7  special category than investigator?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's something that

          9  we will need to review and take back with us.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  How do you

         11  handle a situation where if your investigator calls

         12  a parent, and the parent speaks Russian?  What's

         13  your protocol when you deal with languages other

         14  than Spanish?  Obviously, you have two investigators

         15  that speak Spanish, so you can ask them, if I'm an

         16  investigator, and I don't speak any Spanish, I'm not

         17  an investigator, but I would have to get my

         18  colleague or one of my employees to translate for me

         19  for someone with Spanish.  How do you handle the

         20  protocol when there's languages other than Spanish

         21  in which you have two people that are speaking

         22  Spanish?

         23                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Well, what we've done

         24  in the past in OPT is, we have staff members that

         25  speak a variety of languages, and we've conscripted
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          2  them in to act as temporary translators.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Do you know how

          4  many staff in OPT speak languages other than

          5  Spanish?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  I don't have an exact

          7  number to hand.  We can get that, but quite a few.

          8  We have Russian, Creole, Chinese.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  In the Office

         10  of Pupil Transportation?

         11                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  The back up

         14  there going forward would be our translation office

         15  where we have people who speak all of the languages

         16  into which we translate all of our documents.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What type of

         18  recordkeeping do you have in the investigative unit

         19  of OPD?  I would assume that you have up to date

         20  computers.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We have up

         22  to date computers.  We have found that the system

         23  needs some enhancements because when we got the

         24  original request, and you made reference to the

         25  differences in the numbers that went out, we found,
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          2  for example, that the system could not generate the

          3  number of substantiated cases and unsubstantiated

          4  cases, for example.  So we are creating a correction

          5  on that level.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  How are the

          7  cases tracked? What is your tracking system called?

          8  Is there a computer software which you have used

          9  that tracks the cases, and what is that computer

         10  software called?

         11                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  It doesn't have a

         12  name, but each case gets a unique case number when

         13  it's opened, and it's through that unique case

         14  number that each case is tracked.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You have some

         16  sort of system up and running.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I'm sure it

         18  was built in house.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  It's called

         20  something.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  So it's the

         22  OPT system.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You're saying

         24  that you didn't purchase it?  It's an in house

         25  basically that someone put together, a program in
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          2  order to track your cases?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Someone

          4  designed it and built it in house, yes.  Many years

          5  ago, I assume.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Are you

          7  evaluating that to determine whether or not that is

          8  sufficient in order to meet your needs?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We

         10  certainly are, and there are enhancements that we

         11  are going to build into it, but the basic system we

         12  think is sufficient.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What is the

         14  current or average case load per investigator?

         15                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  At the moment it's

         16  about 63 cases per investigator per month.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  63 per month on

         18  average.  And what is the average case closure per

         19  investigator per month?

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That I

         21  think we have to provide you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Do you

         23  track them by the type of complaints as far as case

         24  closures and/or how many investigators have level,

         25  let's say, you said there's approximately nine or
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          2  more categories and that the operators then forward

          3  to the investigation unit, so is there a certain

          4  amount of cases in each category that basically is

          5  assigned to each investigator?  Or are certain

          6  investigators assigned the most difficult cases?  Do

          7  you have any idea, or you don't know?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  In terms of who gets

          9  assigned cases, all our investigators are capable of

         10  handling a wide range of cases.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I can imagine

         12  that they are, but I do know of investigators,

         13  certain investigators have certain skills.  Each

         14  individual has individual skills, so I'm asking

         15  whether or not there are certain cases that are

         16  assigned to certain investigators.  For example, the

         17  more complex cases an investigator may not carry 63

         18  cases on their case load.  They may carry 45.  And

         19  case closure per month may be, let's say five or six

         20  compared to an average individual that's carrying 65

         21  may close 15.

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I think

         23  you're absolutely right, and I don't think we're

         24  doing that today, and that's one of the things that

         25  we're going to expect from the person we're bringing
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          2  in to manage this unit.  A much more sophisticated

          3  approach in terms of how cases are assigned.  I just

          4  want to make reference to one thing, if I may.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Go ahead,

          6  please.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I believe

          8  there are more than nine categories, significantly

          9  more than nine, and we can provide you with that

         10  list.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Sure, okay.

         12  Can you or anyone in your office explain to us the

         13  standards and criteria for judging complaints as

         14  either substantiated or unsubstantiated?  Are there

         15  different criteria for substantiating incidents

         16  involving only students versus those that involve

         17  staff and students?  And are these standards in

         18  writing anywhere?

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  As the Deputy

         20  Chancellor said, the focus of this unit up to this

         21  point really has been on substantiating driver

         22  escort misconduct cases.  That is what they were

         23  focused on primarily.  The student- on- student

         24  cases were referred to the schools for the second

         25  stage of that investigation. So it was really driver
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          2  escort cases that we're looking to substantiate, and

          3  we were looking at the behavior of the driver and

          4  the escort, if it's appropriate, and making a

          5  judgment on that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Goldstein,

          7  I'm trying to understand whether or not, what is the

          8  criteria that is used? Because I'm looking at the

          9  complaint summary information that was given to us,

         10  and I'm looking at the substantiated cases and

         11  unsubstantiated cases, and I want to know what

         12  criteria is used in determining whether or not a

         13  case is substantiated versus unsubstantiated?  Also,

         14  why, for example, as you indicated, or the Deputy

         15  Chancellor, you have, as of Fiscal Year 2006, 916

         16  cases that are classified as incomplete

         17  investigations.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We created

         19  that category over the last weeks, as we have been

         20  doing our case by case review. Indeed, I think one

         21  of the things we found is that we lack written

         22  criteria for categorizing these cases because when

         23  we read all of the unsubstantiated cases, we found

         24  some had simply been misclassified, that they had

         25  been substantiated, we had taken the appropriate
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          2  action, and somebody had just misclassified them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So you

          4  misclassified like misfiling?

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Misclassifying

          7  them as far as moving them and counting them as

          8  either unsubstantiated or substantiated, that's one

          9  thing.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  But the

         12  criteria in determining whether or not a case based

         13  on the merit or lack thereof is substantiated or

         14  unsubstantiated is really what I'm asking about, do

         15  you know what I mean?

         16                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I know

         17  exactly what you mean.  What I'm saying is we found

         18  both things.  We found that somebody had just put it

         19  in the wrong category, but we also found cases where

         20  on our review we thought further action should have

         21  been taken.  Now, as I said in my testimony, all of

         22  those cases tended to be minor, but minor is not

         23  good either, I mean, that's not acceptable.  So what

         24  we need to do, and will do with a new leadership in

         25  this unit, is to not only have clear, written
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          2  guidelines, but also metrics, so that we're

          3  monitoring this, and we will do sample reviews, as

          4  we just did over the last few weeks in depth with

          5  the Auditor General, so that we make sure that we

          6  not only have the guidelines in place, but then that

          7  they're followed.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I'd like to

          9  pause for a moment, so that additional of my

         10  colleagues will have an opportunity to vote and for

         11  those that I did not recognize of being present.

         12  Dominic Recchia in front of me from the great

         13  borough of Brooklyn and Simcha Felder from the great

         14  borough of Brooklyn sitting next to him.  I would

         15  like to call the roll on Intro 83-A, the

         16  whistleblower bill.  Billy, would you call the roll?

         17                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         18  Felder.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FELDER:  (Not using

         20  microphone.

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

         22  Recchia.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I vote yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  I

         25  also would like to announce that we have exchange
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          2  students in the house from Beroht (phonetic),

          3  France.  Bon jour.  I don't know too much more.

          4                 Let me turn to my colleagues.  Jimmy,

          5  Peter Vallone, Jr. And then Council Member Fidler

          6  and Vacca in that order. Council Member Peter

          7  Vallone, Jr.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Thank you.

          9  I didn't realize I'd be going first.  Au revoir.  I

         10  wanted to discuss Council Member Vacca's bill for a

         11  second, which I hope to be on if I'm not on already

         12  regarding cameras on buses.  Do you have a position

         13  on that, first of all?

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, we're

         15  certainly examining it.  There are two proposals

         16  actually, cameras on all buses and monitors, I

         17  believe, on all non-special ed. buses.  We're doing

         18  some cost analysis.  We're talking to other

         19  jurisdictions to find out if they've had any

         20  experience with the cameras, and we'll do a cost

         21  benefit study.  Clearly, these would be very

         22  expensive propositions.  That's not to say if we

         23  think that the benefit is great, that we shouldn't

         24  be doing it, but I think we have to evaluate it.

         25  Our preliminary numbers show that just the
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          2  installation of cameras without the maintenance or

          3  the storage or anything like that would be about $20

          4  million, and putting monitors on general education

          5  buses would run something a little north of $70

          6  million.  So those are significant numbers, and I

          7  think we have to take a look at it.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  They are,

          9  but they're nowhere near significant as the numbers

         10  we face when we talked about putting cameras into

         11  schools in the first place, and I worked together

         12  with the Administration.  We passed a bill here at

         13  City Council, and now they're in over one- third of

         14  the schools with many more on the way, and they're a

         15  huge, huge success, as you probably know, you have

         16  closer contact with the principals than I do

         17  probably.  The principals love them.  They protect

         18  the children from outsiders.  They protect property.

         19    They've already caught people who have done

         20  graffiti, and they protect the teachers. They've

         21  already, right in the school next to me, stopped a

         22  false allegation against a teacher of assault

         23  because it was on camera, and the assault never

         24  happened.

         25                 So all for the same reasons, they are
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          2  essential for our school kids on buses.  I know that

          3  they cost much more to do schools than it did the

          4  buses.  We found the money for the schools. I ask

          5  that we find the money for the buses also because

          6  there's essentially no difference between a school

          7  bus and a school when it comes to our children.  My

          8  daughter is on a school bus an hour every day, and I

          9  want her to be as protected as humanly possible.

         10                 Just to break it down from cameras to

         11  matrons.  Do you have a different position as it

         12  relates to a matron on the bus also?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  The

         14  monitors on the --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  I'm sorry,

         16  monitor is the word, yes.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We're

         18  looking at it. We're looking at it.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Did you do a

         20  cost analysis on that yet?

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.  Those

         22  costs would run somewhere north of $70 million.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So the total

         24  project would be about $140 million?

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  No, $70
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          2  million would be the cost of putting a monitor on

          3  each of the general education buses.  The

          4  installation alone on a preliminary look on the

          5  cameras would be $20 million, but that does not

          6  include the maintenance or the storage or anything

          7  like that.  We haven't finished looking at it yet.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Would the

          9  maintenance and the storage cost more than the

         10  actual cameras, or something less?

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Oh, I would

         12  think less. It would just be ongoing.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  So the cost

         14  would be less than $100 million, you think?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I'll get

         16  the numbers to you as soon as we have them, but I

         17  don't want to pull them out of the air.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Okay.  I

         19  don't want you to do that either, but we do want

         20  them as soon as you can get them to us because it is

         21  something I know Council Member Vacca is very

         22  serious about, as am I.  Again, I know you've heard

         23  this before, but when it comes to our children, cost

         24  isn't really an object when it comes to their

         25  safety.  That's our number one priority.  It's the
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          2  number one job of all of us.  If cameras make them

          3  safer, then they should have cameras.

          4                 Your testimony on page three, you

          5  said that you found the unit was poorly managed,

          6  which is pretty obvious at this point.  But you kind

          7  of went off script, and I know that Chair Jackson

          8  went into this also.  You said you were redefining

          9  the role.  The person who was in charge of this

         10  unit, have they been fired?  Have they been

         11  reassigned?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Terminated.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Terminated.

         14  See, that's a good thing.  Unlike Con Ed, when

         15  someone's been grossly negligent, you actually take

         16  action and get rid of them.  And that's what they

         17  deserve for running a unit the way that was run.

         18  Now when it comes to the entire unit, I have dealt

         19  with Vincent Scarpa (phonetic) and found him to be

         20  extremely competent, so I'm not going to take any

         21  position on that.  I don't know enough about it, but

         22  clearly you did the right thing when it came to the

         23  person in charge of the investigations unit.  I know

         24  a lot of my colleagues have questions, so I'm going

         25  to end it here, but I look forward to working with
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          2  you on the implementation of Council Member Vacca's

          3  bill.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

          6  Council Member Vallone.  Council Member Lou Fidler

          7  of Brooklyn.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

          9  Mr. Chairman.  I apologize for stepping out.  I had

         10  a meeting with the Speaker, and if I ask you

         11  something that I missed while I was out, I apologize

         12  in advance.  I want to start by actually

         13  complimenting you because it is refreshing to hear

         14  DOE come in here and admit that something was

         15  broken, someone was held accountable for it, and

         16  that you're working to fix it without us having to

         17  scream and yell about it first.  I also congratulate

         18  the Daily News for bringing this to the public's

         19  attention, but to you for actually taking some steps

         20  to take care of it.

         21                 You actually kind of preempted and

         22  answered one of my questions.  I was not aware that

         23  we don't have matrons on all the buses, but only on

         24  the special ed. Buses.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Is a bus

          3  driver required before returning after his last stop

          4  to walk to the back of the bus and make sure there

          5  are no students left on the bus?

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  So how is it

          8  from time to time, at least once a year we read some

          9  horror story about a kid taking an 8 hour trip to

         10  oblivion and the driver not finding out about it.

         11  What does your unit do about that?  And what

         12  discipline is enforced against the driver?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, the

         14  case is investigated and action is taken against the

         15  driver in all cases.

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We'll suspend the

         17  driver, and depending on the outcome of the

         18  investigation, we will de- certify the driver, which

         19  means the driver can no longer work on DOE buses.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Would you

         21  consider some kind of turnkey system in the back of

         22  the bus that would actually require the driver to

         23  get up, punch his card in the back and establish

         24  that he did, in fact, walk to the back and look to

         25  see if he had left any kids on the bus before he
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          2  returns to his last stop? That probably wouldn't be

          3  terribly expensive.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, we

          5  can look at that. We would want to, again, do a cost

          6  benefit analysis on it.  There would be some cost.

          7  I must say that I think with the roughly 50 million

          8  trips we take a year that we have actually a pretty

          9  good record in this area.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I'm assuming

         11  that every now and then it happens, and it doesn't

         12  make it to the newspaper, but all I know is that

         13  there's very, very little solace to a parent who's

         14  waiting for that school bus that's two hours late

         15  and the child hasn't been returned.  You thank God

         16  that your child showed up, but it can make you

         17  absolutely nuts.  I've been there and done that.

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Sure.

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I want to ask

         21  you a little bit about Chancellor's Regulation A801

         22  and as it relates to what happens when there is an

         23  incident on a bus that calls for immediate

         24  intervention because the regulation, as I understand

         25  it, says that the driver or the escort has no
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          2  authority to take disciplinary action, and they may

          3  only caution students about their behavior. Two kids

          4  fighting on a bus, you know, somebody exposing

          5  themselves on a bus, someone sexually harassing

          6  another student on a bus, what is the driver and/or

          7  the matron supposed to do about that while it's

          8  occurring?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  They're

         10  supposed to maintain order on the bus.  These can be

         11  very difficult jobs that these people have because

         12  sometimes it is a great challenge.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I mean, is

         14  the driver expected to stop the bus, get up and,

         15  assuming there's no matron on the bus, stop the bus,

         16  get up and break the fight up?

         17                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  You'll find that.  If

         18  a fight erupts on the school bus like that, the

         19  driver will pull over and do that. The driver

         20  primarily is there to operate the motor vehicle

         21  safety because, again, you have to remember these

         22  are moving vehicles, and the driver needs to ensure

         23  that the vehicle operates safely.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  No, I

         25  understand that.  You said you will find that.  I'm
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          2  asking what is a driver supposed to do?  Obviously,

          3  he's got to stop the bus and pull over.  I mean,

          4  that's pretty clear.  But is there a regulation that

          5  says you get up and break up the fight?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  He'll contact the

          7  dispatcher, and depending on the nature of what's

          8  going on, the driver might, in fact, or the

          9  dispatcher might, in fact, call 911, so it really

         10  depends on exactly what's happening.  I mean,

         11  there's a lot of discretion that the driver has to

         12  determine, is a call to 911 merited?  Is it, hey,

         13  sit down, no moving on the bus, we're operating a

         14  vehicle here.  Is it pulling over, and saying, hey,

         15  we can't do this.  So there is an element of

         16  discretion.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Drivers,

         18  unlike teachers, don't have eyes in the back of

         19  their heads, so maybe the camera idea is not such a

         20  bad suggestion despite the cost.  But I'm a little

         21  concerned about the vagueness of the protocol here.

         22  Well, you know, it's easier for the driver to just

         23  keep on driving and yell, hey, you guys back there

         24  break it up, and some kid may be being pummeled, and

         25  whether or not the regulation should actually
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          2  instruct in that.  I assume, you said, he'll contact

          3  the dispatcher.  Every school bus driver has a

          4  method of communicating with his dispatcher at all

          5  times?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Every school bus is

          7  equipped with a two- way radio.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, that's

          9  good so we don't have to rely upon the kids who

         10  smuggled their cell phone into school that day,

         11  right?  I'm glad to hear that, but probably it would

         12  be good if the kids had cell phones going back into

         13  the school because then they could pick up the phone

         14  and call 911 themselves if their friend was getting

         15  pummeled, so I would submit that that's just yet

         16  another reason why we should allow kids to have cell

         17  phones in schools.

         18                 I'd like to see some tighter

         19  regulation as to what a driver and/or a matron

         20  should do to break up incidents.  I mean, it's an

         21  awfully horrible experience for a child who's being

         22  bullied, mugged, beaten, harassed, to have to

         23  withstand the entire bus ride so that the driver

         24  will appropriately report to the school the next day

         25  what has happened if the driver hasn't been
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          2  compelled somehow to be something that we wish they

          3  wouldn't have to be, which is to be the

          4  disciplinarian right then and there.

          5                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Right, and then they

          6  should fill out the student misbehavior report and

          7  inform the school of the misbehavior.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I understand,

          9  and that's clearly what your new system is going to

         10  require them to do.  What I'm saying is, I'd like

         11  them to also know when they are obligated to

         12  intervene right then and there, as opposed to just

         13  telling somebody tomorrow.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Fair point.

         15    And we are taking a look at that reg. And will

         16  fold that aspect into our review.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         18  Deputy Chancellor.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

         20  Council Member Fidler.  I totally agree with you.

         21  In fact, clarity as to what should happen, what

         22  action a driver should take, should be clearly

         23  spelled out because the fact that if a certain

         24  discretion and a driver says, well, I'm not going to

         25  pull over right now because I don't think it's too
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          2  bad, and a child gets injured, then you have a

          3  lawsuit.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  And an

          5  injured child.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  As you know, we

          7  have pending litigation against DOE and school bus

          8  companies by parents for allegations of negligence

          9  on behalf of the appropriate staff and/or DOE or the

         10  bus companies.  I think it needs to be clear, not

         11  only that, but we want to also protect the employees

         12  too meaning that, because sometimes people get

         13  blamed for stuff, and these employees depend on

         14  these jobs in order to support their family, and

         15  they said, well, I was only doing my job, and now I

         16  can't work.  I can't support my family.  So I think

         17  laying criteria, because if I'm a driver, and

         18  there's a fight in the back of the bus, I'm going to

         19  yell, hey, hey, stop it.  And if they don't stop it,

         20  I'm pulling over, putting on the emergency flashers.

         21    I'm calling the base. And especially if they're

         22  teenagers, because some of the teenagers is just as

         23  big as they are.  Do you know what I mean?

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I do.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And that's
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          2  expected.  Pull over, call the base.  If necessary,

          3  call 911.  Because if the driver stops the bus and

          4  pulls over, and goes back to break it up, and then a

          5  kid jumps into the front seat and put his foot on

          6  the gas pedal, the driver's in trouble.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So I think

          9  clarity is absolutely needed where protocol should

         10  be taken when children are misbehaving where they

         11  don't have an escort or a monitor on the bus in

         12  order for the monitor or escort to intervene.

         13                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Mr. Chairman, when

         14  you said you agreed, I thought you were going for

         15  the cell phone thing.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I agree with

         17  that also.  Next, we'll hear from Jimmy Vacca of the

         18  Bronx.  Jimmy?

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chairman.  Ms. Grimm, Mr. Goldstein, I first also

         21  want to thank you for your candor today.  Some

         22  things concern me.  Let me clarify one point. Two-

         23  thirds of our school buses are special education

         24  school buses. Are there monitors on all the special

         25  education school buses right now?
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          2                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  So we have

          4  one- third without monitors that are regular

          5  education children?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Correct, roughly.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  All right.

          8  I'm going to ignore the FY 2007 figures right now

          9  because FY 2007 has not finished.  We've had an

         10  increase in complaints due to the Daily News

         11  articles, which have highlighted this.  However, and

         12  I keep in mind that one person was fired by your

         13  agency, but when you look at FY 2005 versus FY 2006,

         14  there was a 45 percent increase in the number of

         15  calls to the Office of Pupil Transportation customer

         16  service unit.  FY 2005 to FY 2006 there was 60

         17  percent increase in the number of complaints to

         18  Office of Pupil Transportation customer service

         19  unit.  2005 to 2006 there was a 200 percent increase

         20  in the cases created by the investigations unit.

         21  Now, again, keeping in mind that one person was

         22  fired by your agency, no one else saw the large

         23  increases in all three categories between FY 2005

         24  and FY 2006?  There was not a red flag by anyone

         25  else that would have resulted in saying, hey,
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          2  something here is amiss?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's why

          4  the person was terminated because with proper

          5  management of this unit flags should have been

          6  raised.  It should have been brought to the

          7  attention of others, certainly earlier.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  But, Ms.

          9  Grimm, I appreciate that.  I do not know the

         10  individual, and I will not speak further, but there

         11  was no support organization under that individual

         12  that should have also been working in conjunction

         13  with you or the Chancellor?  Does it fall to one

         14  person within a bureaucracy or within an agency to

         15  identify this?  Wasn't there supervision? Wasn't

         16  there someone that should have identified that this

         17  trend was ominous?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I think

         19  that one of the things we have acknowledged is that

         20  we did not have a cohesive structure in place, and

         21  that is what we're trying to put in place going

         22  forward.  I will say this about the numbers.  All

         23  the numbers were increasing, and when we drilled

         24  down in the data, the categories tended to remain at

         25  constant percentages of all calls that have come in.
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          2    So we didn't see big spikes in any one particular

          3  category, for example.  That being said, the numbers

          4  still disturbed us, and it's why we've done this

          5  complete review. I think you're absolutely right, we

          6  should have seen this.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Ms. Grimm, I

          8  know you are and the Chancellor did announce some

          9  adjustments in policy and procedures.  However,

         10  before, we had seven investigators.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Now we're

         13  going to have 11 investigators.

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  When you

         16  stated before that every investigator has 63 cases a

         17  month, that means that every investigator has 756

         18  cases a year.  When we now go to 11 investigators,

         19  each investigator will have 350 cases a year.  Is

         20  the increase from 7 to 11 something that we should

         21  view as significant because, to me, it's not

         22  significant enough if you're talking of a case load

         23  like that.

         24                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It is the

         25  number that we think is appropriate.  What we, of
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          2  course, will do is monitor it. We'll hire the four

          3  people.  We will monitor their case load.  We will

          4  monitor the calls coming in.  We're seeing again

          5  large increases this year.  It may be that after a

          6  few months we may want to make another adjustment

          7  and recommend to the Chancellor that we hire more,

          8  but I think, at least based on the data we've looked

          9  at, it's the place to start.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  We don't

         11  agree, but I appreciate your stating that.  I think

         12  we have to do more on an immediate basis, but I do

         13  appreciate your response.  I do want to add when you

         14  say a driver receives nine or more points in an 18

         15  month period on his driver's license, that is a

         16  reason for a driver to be dismissed when he gets

         17  nine or more points in an 18 month period.  Isn't

         18  nine points a lot?  I mean, I don't have any points.

         19  I haven't had points on my driver's license in

         20  years.  I mean, I drive like slow molasses, but

         21  that's not the issue.  Nine points on a driver's

         22  license in 18 months to me is a lot.  We have

         23  drivers with 7, 8 points having the right to drive

         24  our little ones.  I object.

         25                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Well, it is
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          2  state law, but I get your point that it's a big

          3  number.  What I suggest is, we'll take a look at the

          4  data, and we'll see what our experience is with

          5  this, and if we think we should have a tighter rule

          6  than the state rule, we'll put it in place.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Ages.  I

          8  wanted to go into the age range of children that are

          9  in the same bus.  Is there an age cut off you use?

         10  For example, if you have a first grader, can no one

         11  else on that bus be above 4th grade or 5th grade?

         12  What is the diversity of age on a school bus that we

         13  now allow, and is that a concern to you when we talk

         14  about interaction of kids?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It has not

         16  been an issue, and you know of situations where it

         17  is, I would ask you to let us know right away.  As a

         18  practical matter, elementary schools and middle

         19  schools -- remember children over 6th grade aren't

         20  bused generally.  So the older children in middle

         21  schools usually have different schedules, so that

         22  kind of keeps the ages somewhat different on the

         23  buses, but we have no rules or protocols around

         24  that.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  The articles
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          2  referred to an Office of Pupil Transportation review

          3  panel.  Is there a review panel that meets?  How

          4  often does it meet?  How often has it met? Who is on

          5  the review panel, parents, or advocates?  What is

          6  this?

          7                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  It was an internal

          8  OPT review panel made up of OPT staff, so after an

          9  investigator reached a case, and substantiated,

         10  unsubstantiated, they recommended a penalty.  That

         11  panel review that penalty to make a determination if

         12  that was appropriate, and referred it to the

         13  Executive Director of OPT, who then referred it up

         14  to the Chief Executive, in this case me.  But as

         15  part of our overhaul, we're looking at maybe, as we

         16  bring in new management, maybe that panel is an

         17  extra step that doesn't need to be there.  These are

         18  one of the things that we're going to reconsider.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I think we

         20  have to reconsider what is the OPT panel?  Is it

         21  something that really is overseeing, or is it

         22  something that meets infrequently that perhaps just

         23  rubber stamps what has been recommended from down

         24  below?  My concern is that if we're going to have a

         25  review panel, it's got to a review panel that really
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          2  goes into cases that may have been dismissed, that

          3  may have resulted in minimal action.  How can we

          4  call it a review panel if it meets once or twice or

          5  year?  What is it reviewing?

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That panel

          7  is not reviewing the cases that are not

          8  substantiated.  We are putting in place some

          9  oversight through metrics, through improved

         10  management, through independent reviews by the

         11  Auditor General to look at those cases to make sure

         12  that the investigator hasn't missed something,

         13  hasn't cut off the investigation.  This review panel

         14  actually reviews the cases where a penalty has been

         15  imposed, and this penalty can be decertification,

         16  which means you're taking away someone's rice bowl,

         17  right?  I mean, this person can never again drive

         18  one of our buses, so I think it was an attempt to

         19  make sure that those very severe penalties were

         20  reviewed by someone other than just the investigator

         21  who made the recommendation.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I'd like you

         23  to consider having representation there from parents

         24  and more of a diversity of representation rather

         25  than having DOE employees sitting on a panel that
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          2  oversees a DOE function.  It just seems that there

          3  should be a degree of representation from others.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I'm not

          5  explaining this, I guess.  It's really a panel that

          6  is there to make sure that the investigation was,

          7  because the investigator has recommended a penalty,

          8  often a very severe penalty, it was to make sure

          9  that the investigator hadn't gone too far.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  So this panel

         11  basically is there to make sure that the

         12  investigator has not gone too far?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Right.

         14  What you're talking about is, I think, where the

         15  investigator didn't go far enough.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  Right.

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's the

         18  area where we will put in place new processes, new

         19  metrics, oversight from the Auditor General in terms

         20  of periodic reviews, so that we're monitoring the

         21  cases that never make it to this review panel.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I want to end

         23  by, of course, hoping that DOE will support the

         24  legislation I put forth, and I think Councilman

         25  Vallone summarized it that there is no too great
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          2  expense.  I'm happy to see that your agency did not

          3  close the door to supporting increased security on

          4  our school buses.  I think the measures we're

          5  hearing today are good.  They are a beginning.  I

          6  was hoping for more, and I hope that you will come

          7  back soon with more internal measures, but I think

          8  the long term we have to look at the cameras and

          9  matrons.  I thank you.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you,

         12  Council Member Vallone.  Let me just follow up on

         13  one question was put --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  That wasn't

         15  Vacca.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  That's Vacca,

         17  yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  Let me just

         19  say.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Go ahead,

         21  Peter.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VALLONE:  It took me

         23  awhile to get them to move on cameras, but they did.

         24    They usually do the right thing, so keep the

         25  faith.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Council Member

          3  Recchia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman. I have all these hearings going on at

          6  the same time, but I just want to talk about

          7  situations that have come up with buses.

          8                 A lot of times with these buses, they

          9  get into accidents and then the parents of the

         10  special needs child calls up the bus company, and

         11  they get the run around for the insurance

         12  information.  The attitude of the bus companies are

         13  terrible. They're threatening.  I could give you the

         14  name of this one situation of the bus company.  I

         15  called the school up, and they said that we'll do an

         16  investigation.  This must have happened four or five

         17  months ago.  Until today I have not gotten a

         18  response from them.  I will get you the name of the

         19  bus company.

         20                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Please.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  First they

         22  told the parent when the parent tried to call up for

         23  close to a month that the accident never happened.

         24  Then all of a sudden they made up all these reports

         25  when they saw the parents weren't going away.  And
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          2  this is not the first time when something like this

          3  has happened. So my question to you is, is there a

          4  way that the parents, who could they go to when they

          5  have a problem to get information about the bus

          6  company?  Who could they contact?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  They could

          8  contact OPT. They can dial either our number or 311,

          9  and of course, the call is transferred to us, but I

         10  wish you would share the particulars.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  I will.  I

         12  will get you the information.

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  As I did

         14  mention earlier-

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  This is not

         16  the first time that this has happened.  When things

         17  happen, and then they call up and they get the run

         18  around.  This is not the first time it happened.

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It should

         20  not happen.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  It's a

         22  constant battle.

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It should

         24  not happen.  I did say earlier we've had the

         25  companies in, we've had the unions in.  They have
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          2  been very responsive to us on what we are doing

          3  going forward, so this is really a good time if

          4  there are any problems like that, I'd like to put it

          5  all in the hopper.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  The last

          7  thing is that I'm still having a problem with buses

          8  on Saturdays parking at PS216 on Avenue X.  The last

          9  hearing a year ago I complained about this, but

         10  these bus companies, they park their buses.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  We'll

         12  follow up on that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER RECCHIA:  And the

         14  merchants are getting mad.  I just wanted to bring

         15  that up, thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Deputy

         17  Chancellor, I have a couple of questions.  Let me

         18  just follow up on my colleague, Jimmy Vacca's

         19  question about younger kids and teenager students on

         20  the bus.

         21                 I think in reviewing the

         22  investigative series in the Daily News, it talked

         23  about that the younger kids, when they're on the

         24  bus, are supposed to sit in the front and the older

         25  kids sit in the back, and where there is a monitor,
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          2  the monitor sits in between.  In one of the articles

          3  that I read there were allegations about sexual

          4  abuse with some of the older kids have some of the

          5  younger kids forced to have oral sex.

          6                 My question to you is, we talked

          7  about age.  I assume since the monitors were on the

          8  bus that was reported that that involving children

          9  with special needs.  What's the protocol as far as

         10  when you have younger kids, five, six, seven, and

         11  you have some teenagers, 12, 13, 14 or 15, and I

         12  don't know what the age cap is for children with

         13  special needs, what is the protocol with respect to

         14  that and the bus monitor?  I assume that the monitor

         15  is in the bus because there's children with special

         16  needs, am I correct?

         17                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That is

         18  correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Then

         20  what's the protocol in handling the age difference

         21  that Jimmy Vacca mentioned and that was discussed in

         22  one of the articles?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Just so I'm

         24  clear, I thought that Council Member Vacca asked

         25  about buses with no matrons on them, and those would
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          2  be buses with children K to 6th grade, so there

          3  would be no high schoolers on that age.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Basically from

          5  5 to about 12, 13 maximum, is that correct, age

          6  wise?

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Because that's

          9  the normal age category.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Right.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Stay with that

         12  for a second.

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Sure.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Would they have

         15  the older kids sitting in the back, and then the

         16  younger kids sitting in the front even though there

         17  is no monitor on the bus?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I don't

         19  think there is a protocol in that situation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So right now

         21  kids can sit anywhere where there's a vacant seat?

         22                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

         23  Now on the special ed. buses, where you could have

         24  children of different ages, we do have a matron.

         25  That matron is supposed to, or an escort I should
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          2  say, the escort should sit in the back of the bus.

          3  We have called in the unions, I believe.  We have

          4  reiterated this.  We will be doing additional

          5  training, and keep in mind the special ed. buses are

          6  the smaller buses.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You like the 15

          8  footers, the half buses?

          9                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Versus the big

         11  ones.

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  The big

         13  ones are just for the general ed.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  So you have

         16  a setting where you don't have a very large number

         17  of children, and it seems to me if you have an

         18  escort in the back, human nature is what it is.

         19  There will always be some problems, but we have a

         20  really good situation for being able to control

         21  what's going on in the bus.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I would think

         23  not being an escort, not being a driver, but

         24  considering that you said that the special eds are

         25  the smaller buses, that's not, in my opinion as a
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          2  layperson, too much to handle if you have a driver,

          3  and obviously the driver's responsibility is to

          4  drive, but an escort is there and everything else is

          5  in place.

          6                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Absolutely.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So I just don't

          8  understand in the incidents reported, how could

          9  something like that occur, especially if you're

         10  saying that children with special needs are not on

         11  full buses, but basically half buses, how could a

         12  situation like that occur as reported in the paper?

         13                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  It

         14  shouldn't, and what we want to make sure we're doing

         15  is, if it does occur, that we take all appropriate

         16  action.  But what I think we want is to make sure

         17  that we're doing everything we can to minimize the

         18  likelihood of it happening, so small bus, limited

         19  number of children obviously, escort sitting in the

         20  back.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now with

         22  respect to, you're saying that you've called in the

         23  bus companies and the unions and you reiterated or

         24  restated or whatever, what is the policy?  I mean,

         25  was that the policy of having someone, the monitor
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          2  or escort, sitting in between the younger students

          3  versus the older students on a bus with children

          4  with special needs?  Because that's what it

          5  indicated in the investigative series was the

          6  situation.

          7                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:

          8  Historically, they have sat in the middle of the

          9  bus.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Historically.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  And

         13  because that is policy or procedure?  Was that

         14  policy and procedure?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Policy, it

         16  was.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And is?  Was

         18  and is?

         19                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.

         21                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I have been

         22  corrected.  I just wanted to make sure the record.

         23  Not every one of our special ed. Buses is a small

         24  bus.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  So some of them
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          2  are the big ones?

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Some.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay, very

          5  good.  You stand corrected.  We all stand corrected

          6  every once in a while.

          7                 Now let me go back to, if you don't

          8  mind, from what I understand in questioning by Peter

          9  Vallone, Jr., one individual who was the head of

         10  this investigative unit was fired.

         11                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What was the

         13  title of that individual?

         14                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Director of

         15  Contract Compliance.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  The Director of

         17  Contract Compliance.  Now you had indicated that

         18  that unit was initially formed to deal with contract

         19  compliance, and I assume you mean by that is DOE has

         20  a contract with the bus companies to make sure

         21  everything is in compliance with whatever the

         22  contract is, is that correct?

         23                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  This was to

         24  investigate reports of misbehavior on the part of

         25  the crew.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  On the crew.

          3                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  Now --

          5                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Or the bus

          6  company if it failed to report something that it

          7  should have reported, for example.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Because, in

          9  looking at the stats going back to 2004, 5, 6 and 7,

         10  even though it was contract compliance, just by the

         11  numbers, the number of complaints has grown from

         12  19,000 in Fiscal Year 2004 to approximately 21,500

         13  in 2005 and then 34.3 thousand in 2006.  Just that

         14  huge number would make anyone think about, with the

         15  increase, that you need more staff in order to do

         16  the job, so how long was that individual working for

         17  DOE in that position?

         18                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  I do not

         19  have any particulars about that person.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What about Mr.

         21  Goldstein? You're responsible for the overall

         22  student support.  How long was that individual

         23  working in that capacity?

         24                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Three years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Three years as
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          2  the Director of Contract Compliance?

          3                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Was that a

          5  part- time or full time job?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Full- time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Full- time job?

          8                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Yes, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Okay.  And I

         10  assume that was an appointed position, not a

         11  competitive position, is that correct?

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Yes,

         13  management position.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  What was the

         15  job description of that individual?

         16                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  To head the

         17  Investigations Unit and to work with the contract

         18  compliance unit, as well as to head that, so really

         19  vendor related issues.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Did that

         21  individual have investigative experience?  In

         22  essence, since you're dealing with contract

         23  compliance, and you said that they were

         24  investigating basically complaints against staff and

         25  what have you, and so forth, and you have seven
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          2  investigators that are former NYPD individuals with

          3  many years of investigative experience, did the

          4  individual that was heading that unit have any

          5  investigative experience whatsoever?

          6                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No.  The individual

          7  was there to manage the unit, but the individual

          8  wasn't part of the investigative unit itself.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And did not

         10  have any investigative experience?

         11                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Now I make an

         13  assumption that the individual that you're going to

         14  hire is going to have investigative experience?

         15                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And management

         17  experience?

         18                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  That's correct.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Are you going

         20  to be posting for that job, for the Director?

         21                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  We have identified an

         22  individual that we're talking to.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just

         24  thank both of you. Council Member John Liu, did he

         25  have any questions, Council Member? Council Member
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          2  Dan Garodnick, you want to vote?  Billy, would you

          3  call the vote on here?

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Council Member

          5  Garodnick.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GARODNICK:  Aye.

          7                 COUNCIL CLERK:  We now see 13 in the

          8  affirmative and 1 negative, zero abstentions on

          9  Introduction No. 83-A.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA:  Thank you, Mr.

         11  Goldstein.  Thank you, Ms. Grimm.

         12                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA:  Our next panel

         16  will consist of Maxine Susseles, Esquire, Debbie

         17  Stevens, parent, James McCrorie, Esquire and

         18  Jacqueline Daley, Esquire.  Ms. Susseles, would you

         19  like to start?  Would you be Ms. Susseles?  Ms.

         20  Stevens?  Do you want to start, Ms. Stevens?

         21                 MS. STEVENS:  I'm a parent.  My name

         22  is Debbie Stevens, and with me is my son, Michael

         23  Needer (phonetic), and I want to thank everybody

         24  here, first of all, for gathering this Hearing and

         25  also the Daily News because this is not new.  This
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          2  kind of thing has been going on for quite a while.

          3                 Back May 18, 2005 my son, Michael,

          4  was on a mini- bus and, in fact, it was two weeks

          5  after he had a seizure and he was hospitalized, and

          6  when he came home from school that day, he got off

          7  the bus.  The matrons said absolutely nothing about

          8  the chaos that went on this mini- bus.  What

          9  happened was, on that bus there were not only one

         10  matron but two matrons, plus the bus driver, and I

         11  can mail in copies.  I didn't get a chance to give

         12  copies to everybody, but I have all the reports.

         13  There were two kids that were complete chaos,

         14  hitting people over the head, running around and

         15  there were two matrons, and Michael had called out

         16  because he was hit in the head, and he was

         17  completely ignored.  He got hit twice by two

         18  different boys.  I don't blame the boys because he

         19  has autism, high functioning autistic young man.

         20  I'm not blaming the kids, but the people that are

         21  hired to protect the best interests of our kids,

         22  their health, safety and well- being.

         23                 So he was basically hit twice in the

         24  head, and he had called out to the matrons and

         25  nobody assisted him.  The bus driver didn't stop the
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          2  bus, nothing.  To top it off, after that, they pull

          3  up in front of my apartment, they let him off,

          4  they're ready to take off into the sunset, but

          5  before the bus took off, Michael had told me that he

          6  was hit.  They had no idea he was verbal, and this

          7  is a very serious thing.  There may be school buses

          8  where none of the kids may be verbal.  How are we

          9  going to monitor who is getting hit and who is not?

         10  So I think cameras is very good on the buses.  But

         11  they had no idea he was verbal, and they just let

         12  him off.  Then he told, he said, you want to tell

         13  them, Michael?

         14                 MICHAEL:  I said, ma, two boys hit

         15  me.

         16                 MS. STEVEN:  And then I said to the

         17  matron, I says, he got hit.  Oh, yeah, well, it's

         18  nothing.  It happens all the time on the buses.  I

         19  says, well, what about a report?  You know, you have

         20  to make a report.  Oh, well, we don't have to.  They

         21  were completely downplaying it.  In fact, they were

         22  shocked that he was verbal.  They didn't realize it.

         23                 I said to myself, if this happens to

         24  my son, how many other people could this be

         25  happening to?  I'm lucky my son is verbal.  What
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          2  about everybody else's kids?  I'm not just looking

          3  for the best interest of my son, but many other

          4  kids.  I happen to be fortunate my son is verbal,

          5  but for me, this is like an outrage. I immediately

          6  called the bus company.  They took off, they said,

          7  yeah, yeah, yeah, we'll do it.  The bus company,

          8  from the start, and I have the paper work, I have to

          9  send you copies, from the start they were more

         10  sticking up for the matron and the bus driver.  They

         11  were downplaying it.  You know, it's not a big deal

         12  and oh, we'll look into it.  In fact, they told me

         13  that me as a parent is not entitled to an incident

         14  report.  Only the kids that are doing the actual

         15  hitting, their parents get an incident report.  That

         16  sounded crazy to me.  This is like 4 o'clock in the

         17  afternoon.  I said, what do you mean, I don't get an

         18  incident report?  Of course, I do.  They thought I

         19  was stupid, so I can imagine what happens to people

         20  that don't know the language. I'm not saying I'm a

         21  college person, but I have common sense, and I know

         22  that you're supposed to get an incident report.

         23                 So I talked to the head of the bus

         24  company.  I spoke to other people there, and they

         25  acted so nonchalant about the whole situation trying
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          2  to discourage me, like it's not a big deal, it

          3  happens all the time, and so on.  I said, well, I

          4  want an incident report and that's it.

          5                 The next day I was very disturbed

          6  about what happened.  Then I called the Office of --

          7  I'm the type of person, I don't give up.  I happen

          8  to be the mother of five kids, grandmother of two,

          9  but I said to myself, I'm not going to let this sit.

         10    Let me just say one thing.

         11                 What I sense is that the bus company

         12  is kind of like a them and us mentality.  Okay,

         13  she's one parent, she's making a complaint, nothing

         14  is going to happen.  But you know what? Something

         15  did happen, thanks to the Daily News.  I knew this

         16  day was going to come sooner or later.

         17                 Many, many parents are ignored.  The

         18  next day, I called up the Office of Pupil

         19  Transportation, got my report here, and this same

         20  thing, well, you know, these things happen.  We

         21  can't, quote unquote, investigate every case, and

         22  you know, that's just the way it is.  They were kind

         23  of discouraging me from moving forward.  I even

         24  called at that time David Perez.  He was with

         25  District 75.  He was the person that was the head of
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          2  school safety. In the investigative report by Dennis

          3  Harrington, in his report, he said, well, Mr. Perez

          4  doesn't know much about it.  How could somebody from

          5  school safety not know something about what they're

          6  hired to do?  They're supposed to investigate and

          7  check what's going on.

          8                 So then I went through Martin

          9  Oestreicher's office.  I tell you, I wish had a copy

         10  of my phone bill. All these calls I made, Jeff

         11  Dunett (phonetic).  He's still with the bus company.

         12    He seemed to be trying to be helpful, but he had

         13  told me when he spoke to Dennis Harrington that he

         14  wasn't going to investigate it.  I said, what do you

         15  mean?

         16                 Then somebody anonymously from

         17  Michael's school at that time, one of the teachers

         18  called me and told me about another girl that was on

         19  the very same bus as Michael, the same time, she had

         20  earrings ripped out of her ears, non- verbal.

         21  Actually, he asked me if he could call the mother

         22  and give my phone number.  I said, no problem.  This

         23  is an outrage, so she called me up, and she told me

         24  that many times her daughter came home with bruises

         25  unexplained.  I said to her what happened to
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          2  Michael.  She said, oh, that explains it.

          3                 And in this report that I have, it's

          4  not a report, but it talks the name of the student's

          5  not there.  Student -- This is one of the students

          6  that were on the bus -- was observed climbing over

          7  the seat, trying to put his hands in this other

          8  kid's pocket.  The student was told to stop and

          9  leave him alone.  This wasn't with my son, but with

         10  somebody else they were bothering, and then it said

         11  that they were throwing objects and standing up and

         12  cursing, and so on and so forth.

         13                 So with this mother, she was very

         14  happy to know that there was an answer as to why her

         15  daughter was coming home with bruises and black and

         16  blue.  I said to myself, you know what?  This is

         17  getting to be out of hand, there are too many things

         18  going on. So I called Martin Oestreicher's office.

         19  I called everybody.  They were very reluctant to

         20  even make a report because, quote unquote, this is

         21  common things that happen on the bus.  But once they

         22  knew that I knew about the other girl, this is

         23  another thing too.  They don't want to let you know

         24  about the other kids that are getting hit on the

         25  bus.  I mean, I don't have a right to know their
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          2  name, but they want you to think that you're the

          3  only parent in the world that's making a complaint,

          4  that nothing's happening.  But the fact of the

          5  matter is, it's happening a lot, and you saw the

          6  stories in the papers, and you know what's going on.

          7

          8                 So when they knew that I knew about

          9  the other parent and her daughter, then,

         10  reluctantly, Mr. Harrington was going to do an

         11  investigation.  Basically, the student becomes the

         12  enemy, the victim.  It's a victim mentality because

         13  I think what they're worried about, instead of

         14  trying to rectify it and admit wrongdoing and

         15  correct people, they're worried about litigation.  I

         16  think, in my opinion, in the back of their mind,

         17  litigation, lawsuit, so, we got to downplay what's

         18  going on.  And you can't downplay it because, thank

         19  God for the papers that this came out.

         20                 What I want to tell you, it's not

         21  easy, as they say, to get results.  You could be on

         22  the phone with OPT forever. They'll yes you to

         23  death, but as far as action goes, they're really

         24  reluctant to really want to help the parent.

         25  They're more like, another annoying parent, but
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          2  that's not how it goes because special ed. kids and

          3  regular ed. kids, especially special ed. kids,

          4  they're the most vulnerable people, especially

          5  special ed., but I'm not ruling out the other kids

          6  that don't have special needs.

          7                 Here's a situation where there was

          8  three people on a mini-bus.  All this chaos is going

          9  on, my son's getting hit, the girl, her earrings are

         10  being pulled out, and they have the audacity to let

         11  him off the bus and thinking he's not verbal, to

         12  just not say anything.  Can you imagine if this is

         13  your son or daughter, and they're not verbal, you

         14  know how angry you'd be?  But I said to myself, wait

         15  a minute, let me do it the legal way, no lawsuit,

         16  but let me just do what I can.  And this is what

         17  they did.  They let him off not thinking he was

         18  verbal, and I said to myself, this is mind boggling

         19  because if they do it to him thinking that there's

         20  got to a lot of kids that are getting hurt that they

         21  don't report anything about.  So I pursued it, and I

         22  pursued it, and I even, now I know you're going to

         23  be surprised, let me just take some water. One

         24  morning I got, and I know he's a nice man, Dennis

         25  Wolcott on the phone.  I have a copy of the letter
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          2  that was sent to him and faxed to the Department of

          3  Education acknowledging the letter.  I think the

          4  nice woman, Ms. Natal (phonetic), she has a copy of

          5  it.  I emailed it to her of the letter, but let me

          6  try to make this fast here.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  We have it, Jan

          8  Atwell.

          9                 MS. STEVENS:  Atwell, yes.  Atwell.

         10  Here's the letter.  I'm just going to get the facts.

         11    I don't want to sound repetitious.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  You don't have

         13  to read it.

         14                 MS. STEVENS:  Well, it's a letter to

         15  Wolcott.  It's a 12-page letter detailing that, let

         16  me try to condense it, that something has to be done

         17  because kids are getting hurt on the bus and that

         18  the incident, not just with my son, but with other

         19  kids too, that they really got to try to get to the

         20   --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Did you get a

         22  response from Deputy Mayor Dennis Wolcott?

         23                 MS. STEVENS:  Absolutely not.  I got

         24  him by surprise, actually.  Like I said, I like to

         25  be a persistent kind of person.  I got him before
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          2  his staff came in.  But having said that, to be

          3  honest with you, in all fairness of Mr. Wolcott, he

          4  may have gave the letter to somebody else, and they

          5  just didn't bother, they ignored it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Right, okay.

          7                 MS. STEVENS:  So that's a big problem

          8  too, Mr. Jackson, is that while we have problems

          9  like this, Jackson, your name is, sir?

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, Jackson.

         11                 MS. STEVENS:  While we have problems

         12  like this sometimes is because nobody wants to make

         13  waves.  Underneath the Mayor's guidelines, they

         14  don't want him to find out that things aren't always

         15  going right.  But everything comes out in the wash,

         16  and what they really need to do is rectify it.  They

         17  need to look at the stats, like you said, do follow

         18  ups.  I'm a follow up kind of person.  They must do

         19  follow ups, and I didn't get a response from him,

         20  but he did get the letter.  I know he got it.  I

         21  sent it certified.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, this is,

         23  Ms. Daley, let me just thank you for coming in.

         24                 MS. STEVENS:  It's Stevens.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  This is what
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          2  this hearing is about.

          3                 MS. STEVENS:  Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  If you heard

          5  the testimony of the Deputy Chancellor, they've

          6  already made changes.  They've terminated the

          7  director, and they're hiring somebody else with

          8  investigative and managerial experience.

          9                 MS. STEVENS:  Right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I think that we

         11  need to have additional follow up hearing to see

         12  what progress they have made. I'm going to turn to

         13  my colleague, Lou Fidler, that have some questions.

         14                 MS. STEVENS:  Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  And then we're

         16  going to try to move on.

         17                 MS. STEVENS:  Okay, I'll keep my

         18  answers short, I'll try.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Actually,

         21  it's more by way of comment than a question.  I want

         22  to thank you for your testimony, and I want to thank

         23  you for your persistence.

         24                 MS. STEVENS:  It's not easy being up

         25  here, but someone's got to do it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Well, you did

          3  a good job.

          4                 MS. STEVENS:  Thank you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I just want

          6  to point out that when we rely upon the bus

          7  companies and the matrons to be the reporters of

          8  incidents, they themselves have an interest in

          9  downplaying the incidents, as is clearly the case

         10  for the testimony here.  They don't want their

         11  driver sanctioned.  I would imagine if a bus

         12  company, I would certainly hope that if a bus

         13  company repeatedly puts forward drivers that break

         14  the rules that the bus company's contract would be

         15  violated.  So I see a problem there in that, and I

         16  hope the Deputy Chancellor is going to look at that.But

         17  more importantly, going to the questions that I

         18  asked Deputy Chancellor Grimm, and you commented on,

         19  Mr. Chairman, about the need for regulations that

         20  affirmatively state what the personnel on the bus

         21  are supposed to do while something is happening is

         22  just underscored by this testimony a million times.

         23  The easy thing to do is to keep on driving and

         24  forget about it and let the kids beat each other to

         25  death.  That's the easy thing to do, and I don't
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          2  envy a bus driver or matron who's got to get up and

          3  get in the middle of physical violence.  That's not

          4  what they probably signed on for, but unfortunately,

          5  they are the adults in the situation, and there's

          6  got to be an affirmative regulation that says this

          7  is what you do, this is how you conduct yourself,

          8  and this is what every parent has a right to expect

          9  because we already know that the ABC's of learning

         10  are that a child cannot learn in school if going to

         11  school and being in school they are in fear.

         12                 MS. STEVENS:  Exactly.  And I'd like

         13  to add one thing really quick.  Michael's heroics by

         14  telling about what happened on the bus, I actually I

         15  forgot to mention, I was in contact many times with

         16  Matthew Sapalin (phonetic) from the Mayor's Office

         17  of Disabilities, so if anybody should have brought

         18  that to the attention of the Mayor, he should have,

         19  and he may have.  He's a very nice person, but

         20  Michael was invited, because of his heroics, to the

         21  barbecue.  Here's a picture of Michael with the

         22  Mayor, and it wasn't in honor of him, but it's one

         23  thing to invite him to a barbecue, but I thought for

         24  sure that the Mayor's Office of Disabilities, Mr.

         25  Sapalin, I talked to him personally, he's very nice
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          2  man, but each time I asked him, does the Mayor know

          3  about it? He was like, oh, I didn't have time, or he

          4  was busy, and I can understand that, but the bottom

          5  line is, it would have been better for them to do it

          6  then maybe we wouldn't have had to have these

          7  hearings.  Maybe those other kids after May, 2005

          8  wouldn't have got hurt.

          9                 What I do suggest, what I hope, like

         10  you said, cameras on the buses, and an independent

         11  investigations unit outside the DOE that will

         12  monitor the complaints, like another option.

         13  Because sometimes people in the same organization,

         14  they work for the same people, they don't really

         15  want to, I'm not going to say rat people out, but I

         16  think an independent panel, even if they have to

         17  check with you guys once a year or twice a year to

         18  find out what's going on in the situation, so you

         19  can monitor the complaints.  I know you guys are

         20  busy.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you, Ms.

         22  Stevens.  Thank you very much for coming in.

         23                 MS. STEVENS:  I appreciate it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Next we're

         25  going to hear from Maxine Susseles, Esquire
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          2  representing school children, a plaintiff in the New

          3  York State Courts, and Jacqueline Daley and James

          4  McCrorie, Esquire, attorney for Jacqueline Daley,

          5  parent of a student.  Please come up, all three.

          6  Sergeant- of- Arms, would you make sure there's

          7  three chairs up there, please?  Maxine, you can go

          8  first.

          9                 MS. SUSSELES:  Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Just introduce

         11  yourself, and you may begin.

         12                 MS. SUSSELES:  I'm Maxine Susseles,

         13  and I'm an education attorney in New York.  I've

         14  tried many cases on behalf of school children who

         15  have been molested, abused, beaten throughout the

         16  New York City public schools, and I come before you

         17  because one of the cases that was reported by the

         18  Daily News is one of my clients, Alexis Warnic, the

         19  little girl who was tied up with electrical tape on

         20  the bus, and the bus driver was Edwidge Jean. But

         21  let me start with this remark.  We're all in

         22  agreement that we want our children to be safe from

         23  the moment that they leave the house to go on the

         24  school bus in the morning up to and including the

         25  time that they're returned to us at the end of the
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          2  day.  We don't want to learn that our child has been

          3  attacked and that the attack or the injury was

          4  captured on videotape recorded and that either no

          5  one listened to the child's screams or cries for

          6  help, as was the case in Alexis Warnic's matter, and

          7  that no one listened to the parent's complaint, as I

          8  will further tell you has been something that I've

          9  heard all too often throughout my practice.

         10                 As an education attorney dedicated to

         11  protecting children, I've witnessed firsthand how

         12  parents who voice complaints are answered by school

         13  administrators and parent coordinators' mantra,

         14  we'll get to it, we'll look it, don't worry.  But

         15  that day rarely comes.

         16                 I propose the establishment of an

         17  automated online complaint system where parents and

         18  guardians can register their complaints of violence

         19  and abuse against their children on buses via

         20  computer and track the progress of the investigation

         21  themselves.  Because, at present, as we've heard

         22  from administration, there is no uniform system in

         23  place regarding how the complaints go from the

         24  customer service unit into the investigative unit,

         25  and you have to forgive me, the words customer
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          2  service unit offends me.  Because we're talking

          3  about children, not Verizon calling to see how many

          4  minutes we have left on our cell phone plan.

          5                 This eliminates the verbal contact

          6  with parent coordinators and DOE administrators,

          7  both of whom are paid by the Department of

          8  Education, and both of whom have a vested interest

          9  in minimizing and dismissing the complaints.  The

         10  system currently in place prevents accountability

         11  rather than fostering the DOE responsibility, that

         12  Chancellor Klein claims he demands of the school

         13  system.  The Office of Pupil Transportation is now a

         14  self policing organization, and, as such, they

         15  require independent investigators since self

         16  policing of any organization, especially this one,

         17  can easily ignore or hide abuse since they have no

         18  vested interest in revealing their errors, abuses

         19  and mistakes.

         20                 Now with respect to Alexis Warnic,

         21  her case is one of the Daily News articles.  The

         22  first time that Alexis Warnic was tied up on the bus

         23  is not the case that was reported in the media. A

         24  number of weeks prior to the time that she was duct-

         25  taped, she was triple knotted with her seatbelt on
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          2  the very same bus operated by RC Transit with the

          3  driver Edwidge Jean.  Her shoes were removed from

          4  her and placed in the front of the bus.  The same

          5  matron was on the bus.  There were seven other

          6  students on the bus that corroborated everything

          7  that went on, except unlike what the administration

          8  said here today before the Council Members, there

          9  was no report that went from RC Transit to OPT

         10  because the FOIL request asked for 2006 reports.

         11  None was turned over to reference that incident that

         12  predated the April 4, 2006 incident that was

         13  referenced in the media.  So I wonder where's that

         14  report.

         15                 The Alexis Warnic case, the OPT

         16  report was only generated after we went to the

         17  media, and it is a damn shame that the investigation

         18  begins not when the parent calls, but once it hits

         19  the newspapers.  I don't think that we would even be

         20  here today but for the Daily News series of articles

         21  about this horrific travesty of not only, forget

         22  mismanagement, whatever is going on on those buses,

         23  we wouldn't be here today but for the press.  It

         24  really gives a new meaning to school paper.

         25                 What makes it worse is Alexis Warnic
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          2  has an IEP, which is an individualized education

          3  plan.  She's a special needs student.  It was a

          4  small bus, and the escort saw nothing.  And she made

          5  a statement after speaking to her union

          6  representative, who prepped her ahead of time, saw

          7  nothing.  I find it a little hard to believe.

          8  You've got these seven other kids.  They saw

          9  everything, but she saw nothing.

         10                 Media coverage should not be a

         11  requirement to prompt an OPT investigation or a City

         12  Council hearing.

         13                 I propose that the City Council enact

         14  legislation to create independent investigators and

         15  budget monies for an independent investigative

         16  office to allow parents and guardians to track

         17  online the investigation of their complaints of

         18  abuse against their children.  Who, more than a

         19  parent or guardian, wants to ensure that the child's

         20  complaint is investigated accurately, thoroughly and

         21  timely.  It's better when the DOE knows that,

         22  forgive me, Big Mother is watching.  Allowing the

         23  parent of the child to monitor the progress of the

         24  investigation would ensure that from start to finish

         25  the investigation actually occurs, unlike what I
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          2  have witnessed with almost all of my cases.

          3                 As we heard from the administration,

          4  the current procedure requires permission to

          5  interview the child in school.  As you pointed out,

          6  many of these children are so young, and the

          7  investigation is conducted in the principal's office

          8  in the school, and the parents' presence is not

          9  required, and often the parent cannot be present.  I

         10  as a trial attorney know that you can ask leading

         11  questions of a child.  A child is scared enough to

         12  be called into the principal's office, and then when

         13  you ask a child if you're the investigator paid by

         14  the DOE, you can ask a child questions such that you

         15  can ultimately boil down and boil away the substance

         16  of the child's complaint such that, gee, you can go

         17  from, can we make this substantiated to

         18  unsubstantiated?  And the investigation can be

         19  closed.

         20                 There's no reason that a notice of

         21  claim in lawsuit should be filed when we have the

         22  power to enact legislation to put safeguards in

         23  place to protect those most precious to us.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Ms. Susseles,

         25  can you wrap up, if you don't mind?
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          2                 MS. SUSSELES:  Yes.  Two kids who met

          3  in Forest Hills High School later wrote a song, and

          4  I'm sure you'll recognize these words.  Fool, said

          5  I, you do not know.  Silence like a cancer grows.

          6  Hear my words that I might teach you.  Take my arms

          7  that I might reach you.  But my words, like silent

          8  raindrops, fell and echoed in the wells of silence.

          9                 The Department of Education can no

         10  longer sit back and pretend to listen because the

         11  silence is deafening.  Thank you all very much for

         12  taking the time to listen to me.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Well, thank you

         14  for coming in and giving testimony as an attorney

         15  representing the plaintiffs that you're

         16  representing.  Next we hear from Jacqueline Daley, a

         17  parent, and then from her attorney, James McCrorie.

         18                 MR. MCCRORIE:  With Chairman's

         19  permission, I'd like to go first, her attorney.

         20  Good afternoon, Chairman Jackson and Council

         21  Members.  It's an honor to testify here before you

         22  in support of your proposed bill.

         23                 I represent Jacqueline Daley and

         24  Michelle Ratley (phonetic), two parents of the young

         25  girls that were involved in the bus incident
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          2  reported in the news, the one you discussed,

          3  Chairman and Council Member Vacca, the two young

          4  girls that were permitted to engage in oral sex with

          5  much older boys in the back of a bus.  Because the

          6  litigation is pending, Ms. Daley is here more to

          7  give a voice to her frustration, and if I can just

          8  briefly recap the facts as we know them to be.

          9                 The incident occurred in November of

         10  2001.  To compound this tragedy, the bus company

         11  went into bankruptcy the very month we put the case

         12  into a lawsuit, so it wasn't until January of 2007

         13  that we were permitted to start the investigation up

         14  again, but I think you'll see that these cases

         15  highlight the very reasons for your proposed bill

         16  for the cameras and the monitors and bring to light

         17  many of the issues that have already been discussed.

         18

         19                 Both of these young girls, ages 7 and

         20  10 at the time, were labeled by the system, and they

         21  truly are and were emotionally and developmentally

         22  challenged.  They both expected protection and

         23  supervision, as did their parents.  They're working

         24  mothers who are raising them each alone.

         25                 On the way home from the bus on the
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          2  date of the incident, with both a driver and a

          3  matron assigned, it was a large bus, it was not a

          4  smaller bus, as was discussed before.  It was

          5  relayed to Ms. Daley that three older boys in the

          6  back of the bus, ages 14 and 15, believed to be,

          7  called back their 7 and 10 year old daughters, while

          8  the matron was off the bus, and that's one of the

          9  issues, if you're going to have a large bus, one

         10  suggestion would be to have two matrons because the

         11  matron needs to assist the younger children of

         12  special needs off the bus, and now she's off the

         13  bus, and if you have an apathetic driver, what was

         14  allowed to happen here was, the older boys were

         15  allowed to call the girls to the back.  It was

         16  witnessed by other students, and oral sex was

         17  engaged in with the 7 and 10 year old girl and the

         18  much older boys in the back of the bus.

         19                 The questions that were left

         20  unanswered by the parents are, and highlighting the

         21  need for the cameras in the buses and the monitors,

         22  are, the main one is supervision.  Where was it?

         23  Where is it?  Who was watching these children?  The

         24  second question, which I believe Councilman Vacca

         25  brought up, was the question of assignments.  The
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          2  students, if, in fact, 15 and 14 and 13 year old

          3  boys, especially so with the same developmental and

          4  emotional challenges are allowed on a bus with a 7

          5  year old girl, there has to be some buffer.  There

          6  has to be some protection afforded to the 7 year old

          7  girl.

          8                 The questions Ms. Daley asks is how

          9  does the Department of Education allow her 10 year

         10  old and Ms. Ratley's 7 year old girl on the bus with

         11  older boys?  What about the screening of the drivers

         12  and the matrons?  Who are they?  What screening

         13  process went through, and who's holding them

         14  accountable for what occurs on that bus?

         15                 As to the third issue, there was

         16  supervision, the assignments, the accountability.

         17  It is Ms. Daley's and our position that the

         18  investigative process is wholefully and woefully

         19  lacking.  In this particular case, to this date, Ms.

         20  Daley does not have any answers from the school,

         21  from the Office of Pupil Transportation.  She sent

         22  letters back in December of 2001 immediately prior

         23  to seeking counsel, letters that went unanswered.  What

         24  was just brought up by attorney Susseles, what also

         25  outraged Ms. Daley was her 10 year old daughter, the
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          2  7 year old young girl that was also involved in the

          3  incident, statements were taken of them outside

          4  their parents' presence.  The day of the incident

          5  they were separated.  They signed statements about

          6  engaging in oral sex.  This is without their

          7  parents.  All of the other children signed

          8  statements, which we have not been provided with

          9  yet, but, once again, the litigation was just

         10  permitted with the Bankruptcy Court to go forward.

         11                 In wrapping it up, Chairman Jackson,

         12  the system has left both parents with a sense of

         13  betrayal in trust in the system, and just reading

         14  the very end of the letter that Ms. Daley put forth

         15  to both the principal, the Office of Pupil

         16  Transportation, the parent liaison, she states, I

         17  feel my child has been victimized by the very system

         18  set up to help her.  If our children are unsafe,

         19  parents deserve, have a right to know.  Perhaps

         20  awareness of the dangers can help us protect our

         21  children.  I feel it is my responsibility to let

         22  people know.  I intend to do so.

         23                 And by bringing this lawsuit, she

         24  intended and does intend, that's why she's

         25  testifying here, despite advice to the contrary with
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          2  pending litigation.  She wants to ensure that this

          3  does not happen in the future, and she believes that

          4  cameras will not only a deterrent but will hold

          5  people accountable.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.  Ms.

          7  Daley?

          8                 MR. MCCRORIE:  One further thing.  It

          9  should be noted that in October of 2000 on that very

         10  same bus, it was reported in the New York Post,

         11  October 6, 2000, that older boys, one of them

         12  believed to be the same boy involved in this case,

         13  at least as was told to Ms. Daley, also committed

         14  similar sexual acts in the back of a bus on that

         15  very same bus from that very same school one year

         16  before this.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Ms. Daley?

         18                 MS. DALEY:  Yes.  Councilman Jackson,

         19  this is very difficult for me.  The pain doesn't go

         20  away.  It stays with you. Every time I talk about

         21  it.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Hold the mic

         23  up, so we can hear you, please.

         24                 MS. DALEY:  Every time it comes up,

         25  it's as if it's happening over again.  Five years
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          2  ago when I got that phone call, I was told there was

          3  a situation that's coming about and it involves my

          4  daughter, and it was of sexual nature.  You have no

          5  idea what that did to me.  I stopped breathing for a

          6  second.  I had to remind myself to breath.  Then my

          7  question was, how could this happen?  Where was the

          8  person watching my daughter?  For me it's like

          9  voting.  I am trusting the person I'm putting the

         10  person I'm putting into office.  I expect something

         11  in return.  My daughter was labeled learning

         12  disabled.  I agreed with, no problem.  But I

         13  entrusted her to the Board of Ed. And to Pupil

         14  Transportation. Someone failed my daughter.

         15                 To this day, I have no response, no

         16  accountability. No one said sorry.  No one said it

         17  shouldn't have happened.  I have no idea what to do.

         18    I turn to Mr. McCrorie with hopes.

         19                 I'm hoping that by me sitting here

         20  today another parent will not have to sit here and

         21  tell you this story that I'm telling you today

         22  because this story is very bad.  My daughter is now

         23  15.  She won't talk about it, but it's there, clear

         24  as day. The minute we talk about it, the tears

         25  start, and for me it's the same thing because it's
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          2  sad to see that a 10 year old's first sexual

          3  experience is on a bus with boys that I don't even

          4  know if they're clean.  That haunts me at night.

          5                 I thought it was only me at the time

          6  until the Daily News brought to life all these other

          7  things that's happening.  It's really sick, and I'm

          8  hoping that you guys will pass the law to put

          9  cameras on the bus because had there been a camera

         10  on that bus, maybe I wouldn't have to be here today

         11  because they would have it. The proof would be right

         12  there.  Now I have to prove my daughter. She's the

         13  victim, but I have to fight now to make people

         14  understand that she is the victim.  The accusation

         15  is there.  It's her fault. It's not my daughter's

         16  fault.  It's the system's fault, and I'm hoping that

         17  you guys will see it.  We are real.  The pain is

         18  real. Put a stop to it because this small, tiny

         19  problem could just open up into something really

         20  catastrophic.  It's not going to be a nice thing

         21  when it just comes to blow.  I thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just say

         23  that if no one has apologized to you, let me just

         24  say to you on behalf of myself and my colleagues, I

         25  can say on behalf of the City Council we are sorry
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          2  that a situation like this has occurred, occurred to

          3  your daughter or any children because it should not

          4  happen.  I know some people will question whether or

          5  not it happened, but, quite frankly, based on what

          6  I've read, based on what I've heard from you and

          7  your attorney, based on the statements that have

          8  been taken, which were redacted, and I think one or

          9  more were printed in the newspaper, all the evidence

         10  that I have read so far and heard clearly indicates

         11  it did occur.  So let me just apologize to you on

         12  behalf of the people of New York City that this

         13  should have never occurred, and hopefully steps will

         14  be taken where an incident like this will never

         15  occur again.

         16                 MS. DALEY:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Because it's

         18  imperative that we ensure the safety and well being

         19  of our children, and if anyone disagrees with that,

         20  then I would ask them to put their child in the

         21  place of your child.

         22                 MS. DALEY:  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  I want to thank

         24  you all for coming in.  Council Member Vacca?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  When I hear
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          2  you talk, and I read what I read, and I hear what I

          3  hear, I don't know if I want to scream or if I want

          4  to cry.  We're parents, and you know one thing we

          5  haven't spoken about is that this is going to have a

          6  lasting impact on you and your little one, and it

          7  would have on me and my little one, and the fact

          8  that mentally this has taken a toll, I apologize,

          9  and I'm sorry that this ever happened, and you know,

         10  God willing, we will do something.  We have 14

         11  co-sponsors on the bill, and we're hoping to do

         12  something.  I think we have to do something, and I

         13  wish you only the best, and we will work on your

         14  behalf.  I promise we will.

         15                 MS. DALEY:  Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         17  Council Member Fidler?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         19  Chairman Jackson. I think it's interesting to note

         20  that the Council Members who are all sitting at this

         21  table are all parents.  I think that there's

         22  probably a correlation there at the moment, and I

         23  just want to say to you, Ms. Daley, I want to echo

         24  the comments of the Chairman and Mr. Vacca, have

         25  just made to you.  I am also torn between screaming
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          2  and crying.

          3                 I want to also say that when I came

          4  into today's Hearing, I had not put my name on

          5  Council Member Vacca's bill, but I am absolutely

          6  compelled to do so, so that should be 15 now,

          7  Council Member Vacca, because I recognize that not

          8  only would these cameras, as pricey as they might

          9  be, might be a deterrent to bad behavior, but as per

         10  the other testimony I've heard as well, it kind of

         11  levels the playing field between the children who

         12  are victims and the adults who fail to supervise

         13  what's going on in the bus.  You know, you can

         14  manipulate the testimony of a 7 year old or a 10

         15  year old.  Cameras don't lie.  I would think that is

         16  probably worth it, just for that.

         17                 Ms. Susseles, I want to ask you a

         18  question.  I know the litigation is still pending.

         19  The cases that you talked about the young lady who

         20  was duct- taped by the driver to her seat, is that

         21  still pending?

         22                 MS. SUSSELES:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Can you tell

         24  me what the job status of the driver and the matron

         25  are from that bus?
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          2                 MS. SUSSELES:  The job status of the

          3  driver --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Can you speak

          5  into the mic, please?

          6                 MS. SUSSELES:  Certainly.  Mr. Jean,

          7  since criminal charges were brought against Mr.

          8  Jean, he was ACD, but with a provision that he could

          9  no longer drive a school bus.  He can drive

         10  developmentally disabled adults, but he cannot drive

         11  children. With respect to the escort, there were no

         12  charges ever brought against her, so one would

         13  believe that she is still able to work in the

         14  capacity.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:   And DOE has

         16  completed their investigation of that, as far as you

         17  know?

         18                 MS. SUSSELES:  Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  You know, Mr.

         20  Chairman, I find that to be one of the most

         21  outrageous things I've heard today, that a matron

         22  could be on a bus, that seven kids could see

         23  something.  I, quite frankly, am not impressed by

         24  the fact that her testimony was that she saw

         25  nothing.  In fact, I think that's grounds for
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          2  dismissal right there, that she was on a bus, her

          3  job was to protect those kids, and she didn't see

          4  anything.  What was she looking at Mr. Chairman?  I

          5  would ask if this Committee could send a letter to

          6  that effect to DOE and to ask because if the facts

          7  are, in fact, as Ms. Susseles has stated, that

          8  person was entirely derelict in their duty to the

          9  kids on that bus.  Shame on her.  I don't think

         10  there's any honor in her not being a rat in saying

         11  that she didn't see anything.  I think it's shameful

         12  that if, in fact, seven kids on that bus saw this

         13  driver duct- taping a kid to a seat, she saw

         14  nothing?  What was she there for?

         15                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  She was

         16  suspended during the criminal investigation.  What

         17  occurred after the criminal investigation since she

         18  didn't testify, I have no knowledge of what happened

         19  to her.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  You know, she

         21  has a right not to incriminate herself, and I would

         22  never trample on that right, but if she's going to

         23  stand up there and say I'm not testifying.  I don't

         24  know if she invoked her Fifth Amendment right, but

         25  if her comment was, I don't know, I didn't see
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          2  anything, that is unacceptable.  That is just an

          3  outrage.

          4                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  That's in

          5  the OPT investigation.  I saw nothing.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me ask you.

          7    You indicated that she was duct- taped, and the

          8  Daily News investigative series said there was

          9  electrical tape.

         10                 DEPUTY CHANCELLOR GRIMM:  Electrical

         11  tape.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes.  The

         13  reason I raise that is because there's a big

         14  difference in duct tape and electrical tape,

         15  especially the way duct tape sticks to your skin.

         16  It's a big difference.  But tape is tape, and I

         17  would agree with my colleague, Lou Fidler, that if

         18  the responsibility of the escort is to make sure

         19  that the children are safe on the bus, either from

         20  each other or whatever the situation is, and

         21  investigators have taken statements from students on

         22  the bus, and they all saw it, her responsibility was

         23  to see it, and if she didn't see, maybe she should

         24  not be employed, quite frankly, because her job was

         25  to see.             I understand the obligation of a
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          2  union to represent, believe me I do.  I worked for a

          3  labor union for 22 years while I personally

          4  represented people facing disciplinary charges in

          5  arbitrations, but in that situation, based on the

          6  facts that I know, clearly action should have been

          7  taken.  If you ask most people, that individual

          8  should have been terminated, so I just leave it like

          9  that.  C'est la vie.

         10                 Thank you all for coming in.  I'm

         11  sorry, Bill DeBlasio.  Can you wait one second?  My

         12  colleague, Bill DeBlasio had a question or comment,

         13  if you don't mind, and also he needs to vote.  Can

         14  we do the vote first?  Billy, do the vote.

         15                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Introduction 83- A,

         16  Council Member DeBlasio.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Yes.

         18                 COUNCIL CLERK:  The final vote on

         19  that item is 14 in the affirmative, 1 in the

         20  negative, zero abstentions.  Thank you.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEBLASIO:  Ms. Daley,

         22  I just want to say I think Council Member Fidler is

         23  exactly right.  All of us are parents.  We've all

         24  been public school parents, and my wife and I were

         25  always so struck when we put our children on the
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          2  school bus in the morning that there is that sense

          3  of was the situation under control?  They didn't

          4  have a very long ride.  They're both general

          5  education kids, but you always wondered if there

          6  shouldn't be more security and more stability and

          7  more organization, and I'm so sorry that this

          8  happened to you and your daughter, but I thank you

          9  and the other people on the panel for turning these

         10  tragedies into a call for action because that's what

         11  we need as a City is to focus and do something.  I

         12  thank you.

         13                 MS. DALEY:  Thank you.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA:  I thank you

         15  again.  I think all three of you referred to a

         16  longevity of time, waiting for action by the

         17  government, court cases, and that's one of the

         18  things I believe in about the cameras because

         19  children are young. Children, as time goes on, the

         20  exact events can be more questioned because children

         21  are young and they move on, and the cameras would

         22  have that day where the incident occurred

         23  inextricably in memory, and I think sometimes when

         24  the cases drag on, many of our children are further

         25  traumatized in trying to recollect and often not
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          2  wanting to recollect.  I thank you all very much.

          3                 Our next panel is Tommy Mullins of

          4  Woodhaven Boulevard, and we have Joseph Garber.  Mr.

          5  Mullins is with the Local 1181 School Bus Drivers

          6  Local.  I apologize for creating the panel, but

          7  we're running out of time, so perhaps if I can ask

          8  Mr. Mullins first and then Mr. Garber.

          9                 MR. MULLINS:  Good afternoon.  I

         10  would like to take this opportunity to thank you for

         11  being here, and to testify before this Committee on

         12  Education today.  My name is Tommy Mullins, and I'm

         13  the Vice- President of the Amalgamated Transit

         14  Union.  Since November 2006 I have been a trustee of

         15  Local 1181- 1061 based on Ozone Park, New York.

         16                 I'd like to start my presentation by

         17  applauding the efforts of the Council to take steps

         18  to further ensure the safety of the City's children

         19  on school buses with Introduction No. 554. The union

         20  commends Council Member Vacca for introducing this

         21  legislation as well as those Council Members who are

         22  co-sponsors of the bill.  We encourage the Council

         23  to take a comprehensive look at improving safety on

         24  school buses by exploring various options and making

         25  legislative findings based on hard evidence.
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          2                 The stories recently reported in the

          3  Daily News undoubtedly garnered attention, but those

          4  reports must be understood in the proper context.

          5  Local 1181 represents roughly 15,000 members in New

          6  York City and Long Island, including over 9,000

          7  school bus drivers and escorts who provide safe

          8  transportation on roughly 6,200 buses every day to

          9  and from school serving, according to the Daily

         10  News, 142,000 children throughout the City of New

         11  York.  The facts are that in New York City our

         12  members are responsible for the transport of 142,000

         13  children twice a day and 180 school days a year

         14  resulting in over 51 million trips per school year.

         15                 The overwhelming majority of bus

         16  drivers and escorts are dedicated professionals who

         17  take their responsibilities to the children

         18  entrusted to their care seriously and carry out

         19  their duties with diligence and courtesy.  The

         20  actions of a very few must not tarnish the thousands

         21  of men and women who deserve respect for carrying

         22  out a difficult job.

         23                 Our members' commitments to

         24  children's safety was dramatically shown recently on

         25  the morning of March 13, 2007 when two of our
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          2  members, Kenia Cedeno and Sileni Reynoso, who are

          3  employed by USA United Fleet, protected the lives of

          4  seven children aged between 7 and 18 when their bus

          5  stalled and caught fire on the West Side Highway.

          6  Mrs. Cedeno and Mrs. Reynoso immediately removed the

          7  children safely from the bus before the flames

          8  spread and prevented any danger to the children.

          9                 Heroic efforts deserve recognition,

         10  but so too do the every day quality efforts of our

         11  members to ensure the routine transport of children.

         12    The Daily News reported an average of 286

         13  substantiated complaints per year since 2002 against

         14  drivers and escorts.  But the Council should

         15  understand, as the Department of Education does,

         16  that sometimes drivers and escorts don't have a

         17  choice about making contact with children to ensure

         18  safety.

         19                 DOE driver and escort materials

         20  provide that no physical contact with the student

         21  may be necessary to stop a fight, to prevent an

         22  accident or to assist ill or injured children.  Even

         23  so, 286 substantiated complaints per year in a

         24  system that is responsible for 51 million annual

         25  trips transporting 142,000 children daily is an
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          2  enviable safety record.

          3                 Still, the union applauds efforts to

          4  further ensure our children's safety.  We support

          5  Introduction No. 554 because we believe it will help

          6  protect children.  Safety will increase on buses if

          7  all buses are required to have monitors or

          8  attendants. Adult supervision of all children on

          9  buses, which drivers cannot do while they are

         10  operating buses on busy New York streets, will serve

         11  to protect children from harm.  We support the

         12  proposed requirement of having attendants or

         13  monitors on all buses.

         14                 We support the proposed requirement

         15  of having security cameras on school buses.  We

         16  favor cameras when they are used properly to

         17  increase security and safety for children.         However

         18  , we raise for the Council's consideration a number

         19  of points.  First, camera technology should not be

         20  misused. We favor reasonable limits on the use and

         21  dissemination of recordings and due process rights

         22  for individuals who may need the use of recordings

         23  to defend themselves against accusations.          Secondly

         24  , the bill does not define the authorized personnel

         25  who will have access to camera recordings.  This
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          2  should be spelled out, as well as where and under

          3  whose auspices the recordings should be maintained.

          4                 Third, the bill states that the

          5  Department of Education shall ensure that camera

          6  recordings shall be made available promptly upon

          7  request to government agencies acting in furtherance

          8  of a criminal investigation or a civil or

          9  administrative law enforcement purposes and shall

         10  not be disseminated for any other purpose.

         11                 It is unclear what is intended by

         12  this language and how far it reaches into terms of

         13  who may obtain access to recordings beyond the

         14  Department of Education.  We respectfully suggest

         15  tightening this language to achieve the purpose of

         16  limiting dissemination of recordings.

         17                 The bill should also clarify that bus

         18  companies who employ our members are not government

         19  agencies and thus they should not have access to the

         20  recordings.  We would be happy to work with the City

         21  Council on appropriate language.

         22                 In any circumstance where recordings

         23  were made available to agencies beyond the

         24  Department of Education, then the individual driver,

         25  attendant or monitor and the union should be given
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          2  access to the recordings to permit a proper defense

          3  against any accusations.

          4                 Fourth, if the information on camera

          5  recordings is to be used in connection with an

          6  administrative hearing regarding a person's

          7  decertification by the Department of Education, they

          8  must provide the driver, attendant or monitor and

          9  the union prior to any hearing an opportunity to

         10  review the recording used by the Department of

         11  Education.

         12                 The introduction of any recording at

         13  an administrative hearing as evidence should comport

         14  with the due process protections.  Rules should be

         15  promulgated by the Department of Education to ensure

         16  chain of custody procedures to account for the

         17  integrity of each recording by tracking its handling

         18  and storage from point of recording to final

         19  disposition.

         20                 Fifth, the Council should recognize

         21  that disruptive students can endanger the safety of

         22  other students, bus drivers, attendants and

         23  monitors.  Our members have also been subjected to

         24  abusive behavior by students on buses.  Such

         25  behavior must be properly addressed for the safety
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          2  of all on the bus.  There should be an effective

          3  process to remove disruptive students from school

          4  buses.

          5                 Finally, the Council should mandate

          6  increased resources to implement any new

          7  requirements and not impose these costs on bus

          8  companies.  The union is eager to work with the City

          9  and school bus companies to ensure the continued

         10  protection of students.  Thank you again for this

         11  opportunity to testify, and I'm happy to answer any

         12  questions you may have.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Mullins,

         14  let me just thank you for coming in and giving

         15  testimony as a trustee of Local 1181 of the ATU,

         16  which is the Amalgamated Transport Workers Union?

         17                 MR. MULLINS:  Amalgamated Transit

         18  Union.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Transit Union.

         20  I think it's important that when we're discussing an

         21  issue like this that we hear from all parties

         22  involved from their own perspective as to the bills

         23  that are in front of us and incidents or situations

         24  that may have occurred, so let me thank you for

         25  coming in.
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          2                 I do know that I agree with you as

          3  far as some of the stuff that you say here.  You

          4  said that your union supports Intro 554 as far as

          5  additional staff on the buses and the use of the

          6  cameras, but all of that has to be done with

          7  additional information and, I guess, regulations and

          8  input by you and your union and others, and you have

          9  suggested several of them.

         10                 I do think that I agree with you in

         11  looking at that where any outside agencies or any

         12  outside group that's going to have access to these

         13  recordings if, in fact, this bill is passed into

         14  law, I do agree that the members that you represent

         15  should have due process rights protected and that

         16  they and/or their representatives should be able to

         17  have either a copy, just like anyone else, or if

         18  someone just has the opportunity to review it, then

         19  you should too.  I think what's fair is fair and I

         20  don't think that anybody would want to do anything

         21  but what is fair in order to ensure that basically

         22  whatever is being investigated that the truth come

         23  out.

         24                 MR. MULLINS:  I regret, on behalf of

         25  the Local Union and all of our members, I regret the
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          2  incidents that have been reported in the Daily News

          3  and what we've heard today in testimony. I would

          4  hope that this bill and its passage and its

          5  implementation would assist us in ensuring the

          6  safety of the children and that nothing of this

          7  nature ever happens again.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Yes, I think

          9  we're all in agreement that the most important thing

         10  of all is that children's safety and security is

         11  number one.  Obviously, not knowing any details, but

         12  I would probably agree with you that bus staff, be

         13  it the escorts or the drivers, they have probably

         14  been verbally and physically abused also by some of

         15  the students.  And, quite frankly, they don't need

         16  to be, and they don't get paid to be abused.  I

         17  don't think no one does. I think that steps need to

         18  be taken, as you said, where a child is so

         19  disruptive where they cannot be transported safely

         20  and with the safety and security of the other

         21  students on the bus, then that child needs to be

         22  taken off the bus, and other means of transportation

         23  needs to be found for that child because, quite

         24  frankly, I've said not only in situations as far as

         25  buses are concerned, when a child is acting up in
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          2  school that it's obstructing the education in

          3  progress of all the other students in the class,

          4  most parents will say then get that other child out

          5  of the classroom so that the other children can

          6  learn.

          7                 I say the same thing in general terms

          8  with respect to transporting all of the students.

          9  If a child is misbehaving to the point where the bus

         10  cannot proceed with its mission, and that is to

         11  transport children, then something needs to be done

         12  in order to transport that one or two individuals

         13  either to take corrective action so that they behave

         14  or, if necessary, make sure they can't ride the bus

         15  and, if necessary, to provide an individualized

         16  transportation plan for that individual that's part

         17  of that individual's IEP and whatever has to be

         18  done.  Because the safety and security of the

         19  students is number one.

         20                 MR. MULLINS:  I was very happy to

         21  hear the Department of Education's statement that

         22  they were preparing these report forms to make a

         23  single form that we could use throughout the

         24  industry, and we're supportive of that, and we're

         25  going to be proposing that we can move that forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

          3  Council Member Fidler of Brooklyn.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. Chairman.  I want to be very much associated

          6  with the remarks you just made.  As the father of

          7  two boys who's frequently been the driver, I know

          8  how difficult it is sometimes to be the driver and

          9  the disciplinarian of what's going on in the

         10  backseat at the same time no less a bus load of

         11  kids.  I wouldn't want the Daily News coverage of

         12  this hearing to impugn the integrity of the vast

         13  majority of men and women who come in and do a good

         14  honest day's work any more than I would a corrupt

         15  elected official affecting everyone's opinion of

         16  every elected official.  It's not fair.

         17                 I'm glad to hear that you're

         18  supporting the camera bill.  Some of the buts that

         19  you put there, obviously the due process issue,

         20  you're absolutely right on.  But you seem to be

         21  concerned about the dissemination of the material

         22  beyond that, and I'm trying to imagine, what would

         23  you be afraid of someone viewing that didn't involve

         24  improper conduct?

         25                 MR. MULLINS:  We're not concerned
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          2  with anyone viewing improper conduct.  What we're

          3  concerned is that the security cameras would not be

          4  used for security, but would turn into a discipline

          5  process.  And the placement of the cameras and what

          6  they're actually recording, and that's why we made

          7  the remark that the bus companies are not government

          8  agencies, and they shouldn't be the ones involved in

          9  actually viewing the recordings as far as an

         10  initially finding out whether or not something

         11  actually occurred on the bus.  If something occurred

         12  that was wrong, and the camera recorded it, it

         13  should be reviewed.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I understand

         15  that, but maybe I misread or misunderstood your

         16  testimony.  You're not so much worried that one of

         17  these recordings, that has nothing to do with

         18  anyone's complaint, is going to wind up on You Tube

         19  or something, right?  That's not what your issue is?

         20                 MR. MULLINS:  I don't know that it

         21  has any bearing on You Tube.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  In other

         23  words, I can imagine what would the camera record

         24  that would be of interest to anybody if it weren't

         25  part of a disciplinary matter?  You're not really
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          2  concerned with that, was I misunderstanding you?

          3                 MR. MULLINS:  What happens on the bus

          4  should be recorded.  If something is done that's

          5  wrong, it should be witnessed and appropriate action

          6  taken.  If that recording has been disseminated to

          7  the Daily News or to the You Tube or to any other

          8  agency that's only going to use it for purposes

          9  other than the safety of the children, then I don't

         10  know that that's proper.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  If it's an

         12  incident that happened on the bus and it's being

         13  used by the Daily News to publicize the fact that

         14  we're not doing the right thing on buses, I don't

         15  think that's an inappropriate purpose and, in fact,

         16  that's why we're here today.

         17                 MR. MULLINS:  That's fine.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I think I may

         19  have misunderstood what you were originally driving

         20  at.  Does your union represent the matrons as well

         21  as the drivers?

         22                 MR. MULLINS:  Yes, we do.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Are you

         24  familiar with the case that Ms. Susseles testified

         25  about a little while ago?
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          2                 MR. MULLINS:  No, I'm not.  Our

          3  international union trustee, Local 1181 in November

          4  of 2006, and I was appointed as trustee.  I'm not

          5  familiar with that case.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  I would ask

          7  you to look into it.  If those facts are as alleged

          8  and that matron who was supposed to be doing her job

          9  saw nothing, that is what demeans every other matron

         10  because that was her job, and I would hope that the

         11  union would be big enough to recognize that they

         12  have a bad apple, and that for the sake of the other

         13  members of the union, that person should be called

         14  to account and be accountable for what they didn't

         15  do.

         16                 MR. MULLINS:  I will look into that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FIDLER:  Thank you,

         18  sir.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Thank you.

         20  Thank you, sir. Joe Garber.

         21                 MR. GARBER:  Good afternoon.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Joe, turn on

         23  the mic.  Thank you, Mr. Mullins.  We appreciate you

         24  coming in.

         25                 MR. GARBER:  Good afternoon, Chair
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          2  Jackson, Councilman Fidler, Councilman Vacca,

          3  Council staff, Sergeant- at Arms and members of the

          4  public.  My name is Joseph Garber.  I'm the

          5  Corresponding Secretary of the Civil Service Merit

          6  Council, a good government group.  Also, I'm going

          7  to be speaking as an individual citizen.

          8                 The Civil Service Merit Council

          9  heartedly supports the introduction of Intro 83-A

         10  regarding the protection of whistleblowers, but I

         11  feel to misunderstand being now that the Board of

         12  Education is now the Department of Education, a

         13  mayoral agency, technically you have the provisions

         14  for whistleblower protection under Mayor's Executive

         15  Order 16 of 79, so I don't know why we need a

         16  special bill.  Maybe it has special language.

         17                 I also agree with the concept of

         18  Intro 554, especially regarding the installation of

         19  cameras.  The installation of cameras can either

         20  prove an allegation or disprove an allegation that's

         21  made false without merit.  I heard this afternoon

         22  the first witness speaking about a fellow Harrington

         23  several times from school safety.  I presume she

         24  meant he's assigned to the school safety division of

         25  the Police Department.  If that is the case, and he
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          2  failed to take any action, or failed to give her

          3  proper information, I suggest that this Committee

          4  follow up and maybe make a complaint to the Internal

          5  Affairs Bureau of NYPD.

          6                 I disagree with the concept expounded

          7  by Deputy Chancellor Grimm and Mr. Goldstein that

          8  the Office of Pupil Transportation should have an

          9  investigations unit.  That definitely would be a

         10  conflict of interest.  I don't know why I didn't

         11  hear that Deputy Commissioner Richard Condon, who's

         12  the Special Investigator for the Department of

         13  Education, he be involved in this process.  I think

         14  that's the way to go.  He investigates all other

         15  City employees in the Department of Education, and

         16  I'm very surprised he was not mentioned.

         17                 I attended parochial schools,

         18  Yeshivas, and when I went to elementary school in

         19  the mid- 50's, we had buses, private bus companies.

         20  In my day, I don't recall much fighting, but really

         21  listening to these horror stories is terrible.

         22  Listening to these stories reminds me when Frank

         23  Serpico was talking about in the 1970's how

         24  everybody saw police corruption and nobody wanted to

         25  do anything about it.  So God bless this Committee
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          2  for taking the lead.  We have to make sure that our

          3  children are protected and they don't receive any

          4  harm because if you traumatize a child upon

          5  ascending on a bus, by the time he gets to the

          6  school, he might be so traumatized that his learning

          7  capacity will be diminished.  So anyway keep on the

          8  good work, and thank you for letting me testify

          9  today.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Mr. Garber,

         11  thank you for coming in.  You always have a lot to

         12  say on the issues that affect our City, and you are

         13  mainstay here at the City Council and at the Mayor's

         14  bill signing.  Quite frankly, even though you're

         15  always last, you're not the least, let me say that

         16  to you.

         17                 MR. GARBER:  In the town where

         18  there's a concept, (Yiddish spoken), the last person

         19  is the most important person.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Because you are

         21  the voice of the people, and so thank you for coming

         22  in, Joe.

         23                 MR. GARBER:  Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON JACKSON:  Let me just say

         25  in closing this Hearing we started at approximately
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          2  1:30, and we ran for almost three hours, and we've

          3  heard testimony from the Department of Education,

          4  basically admitting the fact that the Office of

          5  Pupil Transportation is in a mess and that they're

          6  trying to get it together, and that they fired the

          7  Director that was in charge, an individual that had

          8  been there for three years that did not have any

          9  investigative experience whatsoever even though they

         10  were overseeing, I guess the primary function was

         11  the investigative unit.

         12                 They said that they were in the

         13  process of hiring someone to head that unit with

         14  investigative and managerial experience and that

         15  they're going to be making a lot of changes.

         16  Obviously, everyone, meaning, I'm sure especially

         17  the reporters of the Daily News, the attorneys as

         18  representing plaintiffs in legal actions, and this

         19  City Council, especially the Education Committee,

         20  will be following up on that.  I clearly believe

         21  that in a certain period of time that we need to

         22  have a follow up hearing to find out where they are.

         23

         24                 So let me just thank all of the

         25  people involved, and especially the staff of the
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          2  City Council Education Committee for preparing

          3  myself and all the others for this very, very

          4  important special Hearing today.  And with that, at

          5  approximately 4:21 p.m., this meeting is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 4:21 p.m.)
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